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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable Mayor ;ind F^oard of Aldermen of the 
Cii\ of West Munroe. Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying basic primary government financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the busine.ss-iype activitie.s, each major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana {which is "ihe City" as well a.s "the 
primary government"), a.s iif and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise 
the basic [>rimary government financial statements of the City's primary government as listed in 
the lai)lc of contents. These financial stateinents are the responsibility of the Cit\ 's management. 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial .statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally acccfiied in the 
United Stales of .America and ihe standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standurtls require that we plan and perform the audit lo obtain reasonable a.ssurance about whether 
the financial siaiemeuts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a lest 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial siatements. .An audit also 
includes a.ssessing the accounting principles used •\V\L\ significant estimates made by management. 
as well as evaluating the overall rinanciui statement [presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis fof our opinions. 

The financial siaienients do not include financial data of the Ciiy's legally .separate 
component units. .Accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America 
require the financial data for iho.se compouuni unils to he rej.n.tfied will] the financial data of the 
City's primary government unless the City als(.i issues financial statements for Ihe financial 
reporting entity thai include the financial data for its component units. The City has noi issued 
such repiMtirig oniily financial siaiements. The effects of this departure from accounting 
principles generally accepied in the United States of .America, the assets, liabiliiies. net assets, 
revenues and expense.s of (he ;tggrog:ite discretely pre.scnlcd component units is not reasonably 
determinable. In adilition, the amounts by which the assets. liLibilities, t'und balances, revenues, 
and expenditures (jf the aggregate remaining fund information are not reasonably determinable. 

In our opinion, because of tlie omission of the di.'^crelelv presented component units, as 
di.scussed provioiisly. the financial statements retcrred to prevjouslv do not present fairly, in 
conformity with acci.^uiiting j)rincii>les generally accepted in the United States of America, ihe 
financial position of the aggregate discretely presented comjioncni unii.s of the City of Wesl 
.Monroe. Louisiaiia as of June 30. 2011. or the changes in financial position ihoreof for the year 
then ended. 

lii addition, in luir opinion, except for the effects of omitting blended comf>oneni units as 
discussed previously, the financial statements referred to pre\iously present fairly, in ail materia! 
respects, ihe respective financial position of the aggregate remaining fund information for the 
primary government of the City as of June 30. 2011. and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows, where applicable. ihere<if lor the \ear (hen ended in conformity with 
accounting [)rinciples generally accepied in the United States of .America. 
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Honorable Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the 
Ciiv of West Monroe, Louisiana 

Pa lie 2 

Further, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respeciive financial position of the governmenia! activities, the business-
lype activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information fur the primary 
government of the City as of June 30, 2011. and the respective changes in financial position and 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof ff>r ihe year then t:ii\i.\cd in conformity wiih accounting 
principles generally accepied in the United States of .America. 

In accfirdance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 16, 2011, on our consideration of the City of West Monroe's internal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of ils com[)liance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purf)cj.se of that re[.iori is \o tiescrihe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and ncn io provide an opinion on the iniernal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. Thai report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 
through 11 and 49 through 51. are not a required part of the basic primary government financial 
siaiements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in ihe United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and 
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audii was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the primary government 
financial statements of the City of W-esI Monroe, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The accompanying 
financial information listed as "Schedules" and "Supplementary Information" in the table of 
contents, including the Schedule of Exf>enditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non~Profit Organizations, and is also not a requireti 
pari of the basic primary government financial siatements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures a[)plied in the audit of the City of W'esi Monroe. Louisiana, and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation lo the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpcvse of forming opinions on the financial siatements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic primary government financial staternenis. The inlroductory 
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statemenis are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis ami are not a required part of the basic primary govcrnmeni financial 
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial staiements have been 
subjected to the auditing proceilures applied in the audi! of the basic primary government 
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic primary govemment financial statements laken as a whole. The introductory section has 
not been subjected to ihe auditing procedures applied in the audil of the I.>asic primary 
government financial siatements and. accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

^̂ i-M 2̂«r>u, A L ^ i 4^>M: C^PAQS) 

West Monroe. Louisiana 
November 16.2011 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (PART A) 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 

Mana):»emcnt*s Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2011 

.As management of ihc City of W êst Monroe, we offer readers of the financial siatements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Ihe City for the fiscal year ended 
June 30. 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction 
with ihe accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial siatements. The 
intent of ihis discussion and analysis is to look at the City's financial performance as a whole. 

FINANCLAL FHGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the Cily of West .VIonroe, on a governmcnl-widc basis, exceeded its 
liabilities ai the close of the fiscal year by S57.3 million (net assets). Of this amount. 
S8.S million is unrestricted. 

• The City's loial net assets increased by $8.75 million for the current fiscal year. 

• .At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of West Monroe's governmental funds 
reported cv>mbincd ending fund balances of $9.0 million. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was 
S5.9 million, or 3l';t of the total general fund expendiuircs. 

• The general fund reported a deficit of S407,11.5 before transfers, and a deficit of 
$487,921 after transfers. 

• The City's bonded debt had a net increase of $440,644. Total bonded debt at 6-30-11 was 
$15,571,000. 

• The Cily of West Monroe pays ern[iloyees bi-weekly. Bi-weekly pay programs pay 
employees in 14 day increments resulting in a 364 day annual pay cycle. Since there are 
cither 365 or 366 days in a year, every 11 years there is a year with 27 pay periods 
itistead of ihe typical 26. This 27" pay period occurred during the Ciiy's 2010-2011 
fiscal year. This extra pay period caused the Cily lo end the j'iscal year with a deficit. 

OVERVIFAV OF IIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This di.scussion and annlvsis is intended to serve as an introduction lo ihc Citv of Wesl .Monroe's 
basic financial siatemenis. The Ciiy's basic financial statemenis comprise three components: 

• Government-wide financial siatements, 
• P'̂ und financial statements, 
• Notes to the financial statements. 

This report contains other siipplemeniary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
them.selves. 



The basic financial siatements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the 
Cily: 

• The first two siatemenis are government-wide financial staiements that provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the City's overall financial status. 

• The remaining sraternents are funti financial staiements that focus on individual parts of 
the Ciiy's government, reporting the Ciiy's operations in more detail than the 
governmenr-wide siatements. 

The governmental fund statements tell how general govemmenl services like 
public safety were financed in the short term as well as what amounts remain for 
future spending. 
Proprietary fund siatemenis offer short-and long-term financial information about 
the activities the government operates like businesses, such as the public utilities 
{water, .sewer, sewer treatment systems). 
Fiduciary fund siatemenis provide inforniation about ihc financial relationship in 
which the City acis solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of olhers, to whom 
the resources in question belong. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of ihe information in Ihe financial 
siaiements and provide more detailed data. The siaiements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary informal ion that further explains and supports the information in the financial 
staiements. 

In the past, the primary focus of local government financial statements has been summarized fund 
type infonnation on a current financial resources basis. However, with the im[)lementaiion of 
Siaiemom No. 34 of the Governmenia! Accouniing Standards Board (GASB Staion-\cni No. 34) 
for June 30, 2003. the new focus is on both the Cily as a whole (government-wide) and the fund 
financial siatements. Each view provides a different snapshot of the City's finances. The 
governmeiii-wide financial staiements provide both long-term and short-term information about 
the Ciiy's overall financial status. The fund financial statemenis focus on ihc individual parts of 
the City government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide 
siatements. Both perspeelives (government-wide and fund) allow the user to address relevant 
questions, broaden the basis of comparison (year-to-year or government-io-governmenO and 
enhance the Ciiy's accountability. 

GOVERN-MEN'r-WTDE STATE.ME.NTS 

The government-wide staiements reporl information about the City of West Monroe as a whole 
using accounting methods similar to diose used by private-secior companies. The Statement of 
Net Assets and the Staiemeui of .Activities, which are the government-wide statements, include 
all of the government's asseis and liabilities using ihe accrual basis o\ accouniing. which is 
similar to the accouniing used hv most private-sector companies. .All of ihe current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into accounl regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two govcrnmont-widc statements reporl the Citv s nci a.s.scts and how ihey have changed. 
Net a,s.sets-the difference between the Ciiy's as.seis and liabilities - are one way lo measure the 
City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increa.ses or decrea.ses in the Ciiy's net 
assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other non-
financial factors such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's 
roads and other infrastruciure niav need to be considered to a.ssess the overall health of the Citv. 



In the Statement of Net Assets and the Staicmeni of .Activities, the City is divided into two 
caieeories: 

Governn;eutal activiiies — Most of ihe City's basic services are included hero, such as the 
aciiviiies of the police, fire, pul.ilic works, social services, and parks and recreation 
departments, and general administration. Sales taxes and grants finance most of these 
activiiies. 
Business-iype activities - The City charges fees to customers to cover the cost of certain 
services it provides. The Ciiy's water, sewer, and sewer treatment are included here. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The format of the fund financial siatements will be more familiar to iraditional u.sers of 
government financial staiements. The fund financial statements [)rovide more detailed 
information about the City's most significant funds - not the City as a whole. Funds are 
accounting mechanisms that the City uses to keep track oi specific sources of funding and 
spending for particular purposes. 

The Cily has three kintis of fimds: 

• Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic .services are included in governmental 
funds, which focus on (I) how cash and other financial asseis that can readily be 
convened to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances remaining at year-end that are 
available for spending. Consequently, the governmenial fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view thai helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources thai can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. 
Because this information does not encompass the long-lerrn focus of the governmeni-
wide statemenis, additional inf^irmalion is provided on a subsequent page that explains 
the relationship (or differences) between the governmcnl-wide and fund staiements. 

• Proprietary funds - Services for which ihe City charges customers a fee are generally 
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statemenis, 
provide both short-term and long-ierm financial information. The City's enterprise funds 
(one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities, bui they 
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The City also u.scs 
inlevniil service funds (another kind of proprieiary fund) to report activities that provide 
supplies and services for the City's other programs ami activiiies - such as Ihe Employees 
Health Insurance Fund. 

• Fiduciary tunds - Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity tor tuliers OUISILIC ihe government. The City maintains a Cemetery Trust Fund 
and a Workers Compensaiion Reserve F-'und. These activiiies are reported in a .separate 
statement of fiduciary net assets, 'fhe Cily excludes this activity from its government-
wide financial statements because ihe City cannot use these assets to finance its 
operations. 

The Total Governmenial Funds column requires reconciliation because of the differeni 
measurement focus from the government-wide statemenis (current financial resources versus total 
economic resources) which is reflected ai the boitom of or following each statement. The flow of 
curreni financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers as other financing 
sources as well as capiial expenditures and bond principal paymenis as expenditures. 



The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital a.ssets and iong-
icrm obligations (bond and others) into the Governmental .Activities column (in the government-
wide stafemcnis). 

FINANCLAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITV AS A W HOLE 

The City's combined net as.seis for the 2010-2011 fiscal year increased by S8.75 million. Tabic I 
shows Ihe siatcment of net asseis for the year ending 2010 and the year ending 2011. The table 
alsci shows the net assets for governmental activitie.s. business iy[)e activities and combines them 
into the loial primary government. 

Statement of Net A.ssets 

1 he following table reflects the condensed statement of net a.ssets: 

TABLS 1 

NET ASSETS OF GOVERfsJMENTAL AND BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 

(in Millions) 

GOVERNVENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

TOTAL PRIMARY 
GOVERNMENT 

2010 201' 2010 2011 2010 2011 
ASSETS 

Current and otrier assets 

Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

LlABIUTiES: 

Long-term debt outslanding 

Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS: 

Invested in Capital Asseis 

Nfit of debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Nol ArL-ints 

$ 10.87 $ 9.89 

42.39 42.18 

S 53.26 S 52.07 

S 0.53 S 1.15 

M.08 23.59 

S U.'tO S 11.04 

56.47 65. 

S 14.61 S 24.74 S 67.87 S 76.81 

S 17.78 $ 18.13 

1.25 0.49 

S 19,03 S 18.62 

S 26.30 S 25.65 

7.92 7.80 

S 0.14 $ 0.15 

013 0.13 

S 0.27 S 0.28 

S 14.08 $ 23.59 

0.27 $ 0.27 

S 17.92 S 18.23 

1.38 0.G2 

S 19.30 S 18.00 

$ 34.22 $ 33.45 t *.•} 35 23.86 

S 40.38 S 49.24 

8.19 S._8_p7_ 

S 48.57 $ fS?.31 

Net assets (a.ssets less liabilities) may serve r)Ver time as a useful indicator of a governmenTs 
financial position. The Cily of West Mtmrf^e's asseis exceeded liabilities by S57.31 million ai the 
close of the fiscal year. The largest portion of the City's net assets (86%) reflects its investment in 
capiial asseis (e.g.. land, buildings, equipmeni. infrastruciure. less accumulated depreciation and 
less any relaieil outstanding debt used to acquire lho.se assets). The city uses these assets to 
provide services to ils citizens and the.se assets are not available for spending. The resources 
needed lo refiay any debt related to these capital asseis will be provided from other sources. 

None of the City's net assets arc subject lo roslrictions. Tlie unrcsiricted not assets $8.0/ million 
mav be used lo meet the Citv's onyoinu r)bliiiytions. 
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Governmental Activities 

Nei assets of the City's governmenud activities decreased from S,VI.22 million to $.T>.4.5 million. 
This decrease is mainly due lo expen.ses related lo ihe Sparta Reuse project which is associated 
with the Waste Water Treaimeni Plant. 
Busine.ss-tvpc Activities 

Net asseis of the City's business-type activities increased from S14.35 million to S2.1.86 million. 
This incrca.se is associated with the addiiions to construction in progress relaied to ihe Spuria 
Reuse project. 

Statement of Activities 

The following table shows the revenues and expenses of the governmenial and busines.s-type 
activiiies: 

TABLE 2 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

fin Millions) 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS TYPE 
ACTiVlTlES 

TOTAL PRIMARY 
GOVERNMENT 

REVENUES.-
Program Revenues 
Charges lor services 
Operating grants and conlributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General Revenues 
Property Taxes 

Other taxes 
Intergovernrnental 
Franchise 
Miscellaneous 

Sale of Assets 

Interest earned 

Capitiil contfibutioris 

Total Revenues 

EXPENSES; 
General government 
Pub'ic safety 
Public works 
Cu'iiire ."ip.d recreations 
Ufban Development 
health and v/elfare 
Interervt on long-term debt 
Utilities 
Total E.vpenses 

increase in net assets before 
Transfers 

Transfers 
increase.'decrease in assets 

2010 

4.2? 
2.40 
1.37 

1.16 
15.85 
0.28 
0.80 
012 
0.27 
0.09 

2011 

4.50 

2.58 
10.65 

\.-\s 
17.08 
0.34 
0.83 
0.32 
0.26 
0.05 

S 26.61 S 37.79 

$ 6.2:i 
S.56 

10.91 
4.23 
0.75 
2.16 
0.53 

¥"33'37 ' 

S(6.76) 

0.21 
S r6.55) 

S 

'""$ 

S 

S 

6.61 
10.94 
13.11 
4.3:; 
0.36 

2.16 
0'38 

'38.49 

(0.70) 
10,97) 
(0.77} 

2010 

.03 

?0t1 

S 3.06 

.74 10.10 

$10.77 S 13.16 

3.28 
3.23 

7.49 
(0.30) 
7.19 

.49 

.49' 

J 9,67 
(0.16) 

$ 9.51 

2010 

7.30 
2.40 

1.3? 

1.16 
15.85 
0.28 
0.80 
0.12 
0.27 
0.09 
7.74 

6.23 
8.56 

10.91 
4 23 
0.75 
2.16 
0.53 
3.23 

s 0.73 
(0.90) 

S 0.64 

201 

7.56 
2.58 

10.65 

1.18 
17.08 
0.34 
0.83 
0.32 
0 26 
0.05 

10.10 

S 37.38 $ 50.95 

6.61 
10.94 
13.11 
4.33 
0.86 
2.16 
0.48 
3.49 

41.98 

$ 8.97 
(0.23) 

S 8.74 
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Govornmcntal .Activities 

The Ciiy's total revenues from governmentai activiiies increased frt)m $26.61 million (year end 
2010) to S.W.79 millitm (year end 2011). West Monroe's largest source of general revenue 
(SIS.26 million) is taxes, composed of property tax. sales tax. insurance premium taxes, and beer 
lax. 
Sixty-four percent of ihe Ciiy's revenue from governmental activities ct)mcs from these taxes. 
Capiial grants and contributions f.'i>10.6.'S million) were the second largest revenue source for 
governmental activities. 

The City's expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011 were $.'̂ 8.49 million, an increase of 
a[)proximately $5.12 million from year end 2010. These expenses cover a wide range of services 
with ihe largest being public works $13.11 million or ^A%, public safety SlO.94 million or 28%. 
and general government S6.61 million or ITCv.. 

Busincss-Tvpc Activities 

The total revenues from btisine.'is-type activities were $13.16 million for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2011, This is an increase of approximately S2.39 million from last year. This change is 
the result of capital contributifjns from the capital fund in the amount SlO.lO million for the 
Spana Reuse Project. Charges for services increased by approximately S300,000, Expenses for 
the Ciiy's business-iype activities were 53.49 million. The business-type activities had a net gain 
of approximately .S9.51 million for ihe fiscal year ended June 30. 2011. 

KINANACIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITYS FUNDS 

The City of West Monroe uses Fund accouniing to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

(government Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-tenn inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, unre.'̂ erved fund balance may serve as a u.seful iTieasure of a 
government's net resources available for spending ai ihe end of the fiscal year. 

-At the end of the current fiscal year, the Ciiy's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $9.0 million. This S9.0 million constitutes unreserved ("und balance, which is 
available for spending at (he governmenl's discreiion. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. .At the end of ihe fiscal year, unreserved 
fund balance of the general fund was $5.94 million, a decrease of $46,000 from year end June 30, 
2010. As a measure of the general fund liquidity, it may be useful lo compare unreserved fund 
balance to total expenditures, l.hireserved fund balance represents 24% of ihe total general fund 
expenditures. Due to the uncertain economic conditions, expenditures were closely monitored and 
correlated to revenues received. 

The City spent a total of S7.1 million out of the 86 Sales Tax Capital Fund to hind major capiial 
projects and purchases. This amount increased by S3.31 million from last year. The fund 
transferred oui $1.54 tnillion to pay for debt service. 



Froprictarv Funds 

The City's proprietary funds jirovide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in nnjre detail. 

Nei asseis of the Utilities Enterprise Fund at the end of the year were S23.86 million. The fund 
had an operating f>rofit for the year of S9,51 million at'ter <lepreciation and transfers. 

Net assets of the Internal Service fund (Employees llealih Insurance Fund) ai ihe end of the year 
wereS392.863. 

Cicncral Fund Budgetary Hitihlights 

Over the cour.se of the year, the Cily Council revised the City hudgel twice. The difference 
between the original expenditure budget and the actual amount of expenditures was an increase of 
S735. Actual total revenues were over the original budget by Si .047, 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital As.scts 

The following table shows the Capital /Xs.seis (net of depreciation) of the governmental and 
business i:y[)e activities: 

TABLE 3 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

(NET OF DEPRECIATrQN in nsillions) 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTiVlTlES 

2010 2011 

BUSINESS TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

2010 2011 

TOTAL 

2010 2011 

Lrind 

Construction in proore;.;5 

Buildings 

lmpro\/emerits 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Infrastructure 

V^ater Plant 

Treatment Plant 

Total 

$ 

..A. 

6.12 

0.25 

15.62 

2.08 

O.bS 

0 53 

17.16 

^42._39 _ 

$ 

.A. 

6.12 

0.25 

14.99 

1.97 

0.63 

0.82 

17.39 

42.17 

S 

S 

0.06 

7.86 

0..55 

-
-

2.40 

3.17 

14^4 __ 

S 

....1. 

0.06 

15.56 

-

0 40 

4.15 

3.42 

_23^_9__ 

S 

._? . . 

6.18 

8.11 

15.62 

2.08 

1.13 

0.58 

17.16 

2.40 

3.17 

...56.43_ 

S 

A . 

6.18 

15.81 

14.99 

1.97 

0.63 

0.82 

17.39 

4.15 

3.42 

_65.76_ 

The City of West Monroe's invesimenl in Capiial asseis for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2011. amounts to $65.76 million (net of depreclaiion). This is up S9 
million from lasi year. This investment includes land, construction in progress, buildings and 
improvements, equipmeni. vehicles, infrastructure, waier and sewer treatment plant. 

http://cour.se


s 
s 
s 
$ 
s 
s 
$ 

s 
$ 
s 
s 

3.-195.CG0 

165.000 

460,000 

4.505.000 

2«t0.00C 

3,452.572 

295.373 

403,657 

702,525 

833,566 

929.642 

S 
S 
$ 
S 
S 
$ 
S 

s 
$ 
s 
s 

2,670.000 

135.000 

395.000 

4,050.000 

2.635 000 

4,450,082 

1.235.690 

378,637 
580.362 

668,154 

95-1126 

Long-terrn Debt 

The following table shows the Ciiy's outstanding deht: 

TABLE 4 

OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR END 

YR END YR END 
6/3G'10 6/3G/11 

Bond -ayabie Series 2C03 

Bond Payable Series 2005 

Bond Payable Series 2006 

Bond Payable Series 2007 

Bond Payable Series 2009 

Bond Payable Series 2009 

Bond Payable Series 2010 
Community Dev. Block Grant 
for Econo.Tiic Development 

pirofigtiters Retirement System 

Heart ynd Lung Disability 

Vacation. Sick and Comp. Time 

To;al S 17.852.335 ...S..1.8:152 .̂y.. 

,Vt ihe end of fhe tiscal year, the Cily of Wesl Monroe h.'id lotal bonded debi outstanding of 
S15.57 million. This is an increase of $.59 million in total bond debt. In 2011 the Ciiy had Si .94 
million in debt is.sues. The [irocceds of ihe debt issue will be used to finance capital [)rojecls. 
Under the terms of the Bond agreemcni. a .S4.75 million ptjrtion of the City's obligation it) repay 
will be forgiven with installment payments hy DEQ of the full purcha.sc price (see Note 14 in the 
Notes to the Financial Siatements.). .-\n additional issue in the amount of $1.25 million will be 
rejiaid ovei twenty years from funds generated by sewer revenue. All of the debt is backed b\ the 
full taith and credit of the Cily and is being repaid from the Sales Tax Capital Fund and the City's 
sales tax. 

The City of West Monroe's total long-term dcbi obligations at year end were ,$!><. 15 million. 

.Additional information of ihe Ciiy's long-term debt can be found in Note 12 in the Notes to the 
Financial Statemenis. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NE.XT YFAR-.S BUOGFT 

The City's management and eleelcd offic!;ils considered m;uiy factors when preparing the 2011 • 
2012 budget. The maji.M' factor in preparing the budget is io deiermine the revenue that will be 
generated from sales lax. Sales lax accounts for 44*'.-̂  of the total Governmental Activities 
revenue. With curreni economic conditions, sales tax revenue is projected to increase by l.HT. 
for the 2011-2012 fiscal year. All other General Fund revenues should remain fairly consistent 
with prior year collections. The total General Fund revenue budget for the 2010-2011 fiscal year 
is $18.5 million compared lo $17.1 million last year. 

During ihe 2010-2011 fiscal year, the Ciiy will continue to develop the 60 acres along 1-20 into a 
retail center. 

]t) 



The budgeted expenses for the 2010-2011 fiscal year are SI8.9 million, an increase of Sl.6 
million over the prior year. The Cily gave all employees a 2% pay raise for the 2010-2011 year. 
The largest expense for ihe Cily is personnel cost. The Ciiy's adminisiraiion has taken steps lo 
reduce all overtime to minimal levels in the current year's budget, 
.Most of the City's expenses have remained fairly constant except ft»r fuel and energy cost. Fuel 
and energy cost have stabilized and staried lo decline during the curreni fiscal year. The Ciiy's 
matching contributions to the pension systems have increased significantly for the 2010-2011 
fi.scal year. However, the current condition of the investment markets may cau.se the City's 
contribution lo the pension systems lo rise during this fiscal year or the next. The City's 
administration will closely inoniior all revenues and expenses to ensure the City maintains a 
positive fund balance. The projected General Fund balance for the year ending June 30. 2012 is 
S5.3 million. 

OTHER POST-EMPLOVMEN'V BFiNFFITS 

In the year ended June 30. 2011. the City of West Monroe has complied with requirements of 
Government Accouniing Standards Board Statement Number 45. Accounting and Financial 
Reporting hy Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions. This statement 
requires that employers discU.)se the Annual Required Contribution and Net Post-employment 
Benefit Obligation as determined by actuarial computations. The disclosure of these amounts is 
presented in more detail in the iNoies to the Financial Siatements. 

RFQUFS^f FOR INFORMATION 

The financial reporl is vlcsigned to provide ciii/ens, taxpayer, customers, investors, and creditors 
with a general overview of the Ciiy's finances and to detnonstrate the Ciiy's accouniability for 
die funds it receives. If you have any questions aboui this report or need additional information, 
contact the Finance Director. Ciiy of West Monroe. 2305 North 7'*' Street. West Monroe. 
Louisiana 71291. 

http://cau.se


PRIMARY GOVERNMEtNT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GOVERNMENTAVIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITV OF WFST -VtONROF. LOUISIANA 
STATFMFNT OF NF T ASSF TS 

JUNK 30. 2011 

Governrnenuil Business-Type 
-Aciivities Activiiies 'loiai 

ASSF/IS 

Cash arul Cash Fquivi.tient.s 
Cash v\ ith M^eal .Agent 

.\ccoi-int.s Receivable 
Minimum ix;a,-̂ e Payments Keceixahle (Net) 
I'̂ ue Frotn Other Govornmenis 
hnemal HalarK-es 

Inveiuorics 
Capital .'\sseis: 

Non-Oepreeiahle 
Depreciable 

TOTAL ASSFTS 

LlABILi r iFS 

S 4,S5(.».773 
16.800 

2,660.6Sh 
969.810 

1.172.114 

U3.880 
32.024 

6.376,049 

.>5.801.693 

S 52.064,435 

.S 146,102 

591.311 

081.880} 

15.559,848 
8.030.905 

,S 24,146.286 

$ 4,996.875 
16,800 

3.251.997 
969.816 

1.172.114 
2.000 

32.624 

21.935.897 
43.832.5^J8 

S 76.210.721 

Accounts Payable 
Deposits P<^yahle 
Non-Curreni Liabilities 

Due Within One Year 
Bonds Payable 
Noies Payable 
Compensated .Absences 

Duo in More Than One Year 
Bonds Payable 
Notes Payable 
Conipensaied .Absences 

Unfunded FVistretirenieni Benefits 

TOTAL LlAFtlLrriFS 

NFTASSF'JS 

S 399.982 S 23.410 
87.401 l.i0.089 

1.405.014 
155.714 
871.289 I31,0.S0 

14,l(.o.758 
803.285 
619.933 
Ifj5.147 

18.613.523 284.549 

S 423.392 

217.490 

1.405,014 
155,714 

1.002.339 

14,165,758 

S0S,2S3 
619.933 

105.147 

18.898.072 

Invested in Capiuil A.ssets. 
Net ot Relaied Debt 

Unresiricied. Capital Projceis 
(.inresiricted. f>ebi St-rvice 
Unrestricied, Imre.Aervcd 

TOTAL NFT ASSFTS 

25.o47.9Tl 23.590,753 
(352.320.) 
f405.75cW 

8.561.017 270.984 

S 33.450.912 S 23.861.737 

49.238.724 
(352.320) 
1405.75t>) 

8,832.001 

S 57,312.649 

The aLCiniipanyin^? notes ;irc ;m iniogrnl pari of (hi.s fin;ineial .^Uik-nienl. 
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CffY o r WI{ST MONROF. LOLMSIANA 

STATFMFNTOFACl lVniFS 

FORTIIF YFAR HNPFD JUNF .>0. 2011 

Program Kevenues 

Funct iori/Program Aciiviiies 
Pr imary Ctovcrnment: 

Governrncnl Activities: 

General Ouvemment 
Public Safely 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Urban Redevelopment 

Heahh and Welfare 
Interesi on Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmentai .Activities 

Kxpenses 

S 6.610.630 
10.942.999 

13.105.623 
4.327.114 

857.044 

2,164.106 
480.050 

38,487.566 

Charges for 
Services 

S 1.555,508 
223.440 

1.196.092 
1.438,144 

85.830 

Operating 
Grants and 

Coniribuiion-

246,071 

339.787 

1.989,572 

Capital 
Grams and 

Coniribulion,' 

10.651,917 

4.499.014 .575.430 10.651,91 

Bus in CSS-Type Activities: 
Utilities 

Total Primarv (Government 

3.490.881 3.063,09: 

$ 41.978.447 S 7.562.111 S 2,575,430 S 10.651.917 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes 
Property Taxes Levied for Street Maintenance 

Sales 'I'axe^s 
Insurance Premium Ta.xes 

Inlergovernmenial Revenues 
Franchise Revenue 
Miscellaneous 
Special Item - Sale of Asseis 
Interest Farned 
Capital Coniribuiion.s 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues. Special licin-i and Transfers 
Changes in Net .A.ssets 

Net .Assets • Beginnint: 

Net As.sefs - Fmlin^ 



Nei (l:!xpense) Revenue and 

Changes in Net .As.sels 

Primarv Ciru'ernment 

(nnernmenial Business-Type 

.Aciiviiies Activities Total 

S (5.055.122) S - $ (5.055.122) 

(10.473.488) - (10.473.488) 
(1.257.014) - (1.257.614) 

f2..S49.183) - (2.549.183) 
(857.044) - (857.044) 

(8^^.704) - (88.704) 
(480.050) - (480.050) 

(20.761.205) - (20.761.205) 

(427.784) (427.784) 

S (20.761,205) S (427.784) S (21.188.989) 

952.393 - 952.393 

224.7->0 - 224.730 

16.635.057 - 16,635.057 

440.433 - 440.433 

335.043 - 335.043 

834.663 - 834.663 

322.852 - 322.8.52 

261.684 - 261.684 

54.392 - 54.392 

10.099.048 10.099.048 

{66.40tS) (158.450) (224.856) 
19.994.841 9.940,598 29.935.439 

(766,364) 9.512.814 8.746.450 

-U,217.276 14.348.923 48..'i66.199 

S 33,450.912 S 23.861.737 S 57.312.649 

The accompanying nnte.s iire an iiuogral pari u( ihi.'? financial .si.itf rnonf. 

1.̂  
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CFIY OF WFST MONROF. LOUISIANA 
BALANCESHEFT 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE .30. 2011 

ASSETS 

86 Sales Tax 2007 Debt Capital 
General Fund 75% Capiial Fund Fund 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
.'\cL;ounts Receivable 
Minimum Lease Payment Receivable 
Duo From Other Governments 
Due From Other Funds 
Inventories 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

S 1.636.684 

16,800 
691.760 

1.024,612 

1.100.661 
1.782.868 

32.624 

$ 6.286.U09 

1,260.403 

1.069.485 

135.541 

2.465.429 

1.220.840 

679,:>00 

1,900.140 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 
Unearned Income 
Deposits Payable 

Total Liabilities 

s 65.993 
135.541 

54.796 
87.401 

S 114.531 
1.450.000 

-
~ 

343.731 1.564.531 

16.138 

16.138 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total V\UM\ Balances 

1.057.236 

253,571 

4.631.471 
5.942.278 

900.898 

900,898 

1.884.002 

1.884.00: 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A.ND FUND BALANCES S 6.286.009 $ 2.465.429 .$ 1,900.140 



Total 
Nonmajor Total 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

S 732.846 S 4.850.773 
16.800 

212.070 2.652.615 
1.024.612 

71.453 1.172.114 
61^.841 2.538.250 

32.624 

S 1.636.210 % 12.287.788 

-S 203.320 .S 399.982 
1.153.621 2.739.162 

87.401 
54.796 

I.35(».94l 3.281,341 

1,057.236 
477.297 3.262,197 

253.571 
570.310 570.310 

(768,338) 3,863.133 
279.269 9,00fi.447 

S 1.636,210 % 12.287.788 

The acciimpanying notes ;ire an integral purl nf this fiiutncial slaienieni. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROF. LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS BALANCES TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30. 2011 

Total Governmental Fund Balances S 9.006.447 

Amounts reported for governmental 

activities in the statement of net 

assets arc different because: 

Capital asseis used in g{.ivernmenta! 

activiiies are not financial resources 

and therefore are not reported in the 

funds. 42.177.742 

Unfunded posiretiiement benefit plan obligations 

are not financial resources and therefore are not 

reported in the funds (105.147) 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds 

•dnd notes payable, capital leases and 

compensated absences are not due and 

payable in the curreni period and therefore 

are not reported in the funds. (18,020,993) 

The iniernal service fund is used by managcmetu 

to charge the cost of certain activiiies to 

individual funds. The a.ssets and liabilities 

of the internal .service fund are included in 

governmental activities in the statemeni of 

nei assets. 392.863 

Net .Asseis of Governmental 

Activities $ 33,450.912 

The aee.onipiinying notes are an iniegral pan tii this financial staiemeni. 
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CITY OF Wl-S'f MONROF. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. FXPFNOrfURFS AND CKANCiFS IN 

FUND BALANCES 
CiOVl-:RNMEN PAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR KNDFD JUNE 30, 2011 

Revenues 
Ta.xes 
Inlergovernmenial 
Licenses and Permits 
Charges for Services 
Fines and Forfeiiures 
Interest Earned 
I'Vanchise Revenue 
Sale of .Asseis 
Other 

Total Revenues 

General Fund 

S 12.540.516 
454,001 
898.293 

2,.548,189 
657.263 

51.079 
834.664 
261.684 
289.058 

I8.5.>4,747 

86 Sales Tax 
15% Capital Pund 

S 4,981,018 
3.662.153 

-

152.236 
-

1.659 
-

-

9.531 
8.806.597 

2007 

S 

Debt Capital 

Fund 

6.985.164 
~ 

-
-

1.654 
-

-
-

6.986.818 

E.xpenditures 
General Clovernmeai 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Urban Redevelopmcni 
Mealih and Welfare 
Capiial Improvements 
Claims Paid 
Debt .Service: 

Principal Payments 
Intcresi and (.)ihor 

Total Fxpenditure.s 

F..vcess (I)eficienev) of Revenues 
Over Fvpcnditures 

Other I'inanein^ Sources and (U.ses) 
Proceeds From General Obligation Bonds 
IVansiers In 
transfers (.)u( 

iVxal Other Financinj^ 
Sources and Uses 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balances - Bcginnini: 

FUND BALANCI-S • E.NDING 

4.063.691 
8.671.646 
2.794.376 
2.763,201 

648,948 

18,941.86: 

(407.11.5) 

365.450 
(446.256) 

(80.806) 

(.487.921) 

0.4.>0.199 

7.000.2^4 

7.000.294 

1.716..̂ 03 

(1.537.000) 

(l.r>37.000) 

179,303 

721.595 

8.865.01 

8.865.01 

(1,878.199) 

1.937.82* 

1,937.82' 

59.628 

1.824.374 

S 5.942.278 S 900.898 S 1.884.002 



.Nonmajor Total 

Govern mienia I Governmental 
lujnd.s Tunds 

S 744.330 
2.360.83.^ 

86: 

353.415 

18.265,864 
13.462,151 

898.293 
2,700.425 

657.263 
55259 

S3-1.66-1 
261.684 
652.004 

3.459.445 37.78/,6U. 

324.031 
186.524 
399.659 

2.U2,440 

8.710 

4,063.691 

8.995.677 

2.980.900 

3.162.860 

648.948 

2.172,440 

15.964,021 

1.497.183 

480.050 

5.068.,S97 

1.497.183 

480.050 

3'>.965.770 

(1.O09.152) (2.178.16.3) 

1.551.400 

1.551,400 

1.937,827 

l.̂"̂  16.850 

(1,983.256) 

1.871.421 

(57.752.1 (306.742) 

:>37.021 '^.313,189 

S 279.269 S 9.006.44: 

Hk' acconip.'nning mnes are an iniL-tiral pan uf this financial siaiirmeni. 
it) 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
RFCONCILIA'IION OF TlIF SrATI':MENT OF REVENUES. 
EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OP (iOVERNMfiNTAL FUNDS TO THE 
S'VATFMI-:NT O F A C V I V I T I E S 

FOI^ T H E V E A R E N D E D J U N E 3 0 , 2 0 1 1 

.Net Change in Fund Balances - Total 
Governmental hunds S (306.742) 

Amount.'̂  reported for governmental 
activities in ihc statement of aciiviiies 
a r e different hecitu.'^e: 

Governmeni funds reporl capital 
outlays as e.\[)endiiures while 
governmental activiiies report depreciation 
expense to allocate those e.xpendiiures 
over the life of ihe as.scts: 

Capital asset purchases capitalized 2.617.520 
Oeprociaiion expent^c (2.828,071) 

(210..S51) 

Postretirement benefit plan e\[>endilures (.>1.339) 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. capital 
leases, bonds) provides current financial resouirces lo 
government t'unds, but the repayment reduces 
long-term liabilities in the .siatements of net assets. {1.937.827) 

Repayment of deht principal, including 
capiial leases, is an e.xpcndituie in the 
governmental funds, but the repayment 
reduces long-term liabilities in ihe statemeni 
of net assets. 1.633.180 

Internal Service fund is used l)y management lo 
charge ihc cost of certain activities lo individual 
funds, fhe net revenue of the internal .'ierviee 
fund is included in governmental activiiies in ihu 
staiement of rn̂ \ as.seis. 86.908 

Change in Net Assets in Governmental 
Aciiviiies S (766,365) 

The aecump-inving notes are an integral pari of itiis firuincial siiMcniciiI. 
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ASSETS 

CITY OF WEST MONROF. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
J1.;NE;>(). 2011 

Busiriess-Tvpe 
.Activities 

Utility 
Enicrpri.se Fund 

Governmental 
Aciiviiies 

Internal Service 
Fund 

Current Assets 
.Accounts Receivable. Net of .A.IIowance 
Due From Other Funds 

Total Current .Assets 

591.311 S 

591.311 

8.071 
384,792 

392,863 

Non-C^urrent Assets 
Restricted; 

Cash - Customer Deposits 
Cash - Sinking Fund 
Cash - Reserve Fund 

Total Restricted Cash 

130.089 
7.917 
8,096 

146,102 

Capital .-\ssets: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Buildings 
Water Plant 
Wastewater rreatmcni Plant 
Machinery. Equipmeni & Oiher 
Less; ,-\ccumulatcd Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets 

57.750 
15.502.098 

73.436 

4.228.292 
14,688,740 
1.693.281 

(12,652.844) 
23,590,753 

TOTAL ASSETS i4,328,166 392.86: 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liahilities 
Accounts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay 
Due lo Other Funds 

Total Current Liahilities 

23.410 
130,089 
131.050 
181.880 
466.429 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in Capital A.ssets. Net of Related Debi 
Unrestricted 

23.590.753 
270.984 392.863 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this linancial slaietnunl 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENU'ES. EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Utility 
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
-Activities 

Internal Service 
FuntI 

Ooeratinp Revenues 
User Charges 
Treaimeni Plant Fees 
Water Penalties and Turn-on Fees 
Sewer District 5 Contributions 

Total Operating Revenues 

1.683.627 
863.316 
138.402 
377.752 

3.063.097 

112,429 

2.112.429 

Operating Expenses 
Waterworks 
Sewerage 
Water 1'rcaiment Plant 
Sewer Treatment Plant 
Public Works Construction 
Public Works Administrative 
Other .Administrative 
Claims Paid 
Interest E.\pense 
Do(ireciation 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Operating Income (L<>.ss) 

Contributed Capital 
Transfers In (Oui) 

Total 

Changes in Net Assets 

Net .Assets - Beginnint; 

NET ASSETS - ENDING 

719.927 

352.716 

452T73 
772.344 

109,958 

249.728 
241,643 

-

6.L59 

586.233 

-
-

-
-

-

-

344,017 

1,681.503 

-

3.490.881 

(427.7S4) 

10.099.048 
(158.450) 

^.940.598 

9.512.814 

14.348.923 

% 23.861,737 S 

2,025.520 

86,909 

-

-
-

86.909 

305.954 

392.863 
^ — • • . . • • = 

The yeeompanying notes are an integral pari nf ihis financial .'iiatomeni. 
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CITV OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW-S 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Ca.sh Flows From Operations 
Receipts From Customers 
Receipts From Group Contribulions 
Payments to Provide Services 
Piiymenis for General and Administrative 

Net Cash Provided by Operating; Activities 

Casfi Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 
Increase in Customer Deposits 
Operating Transfers hi (Out) 

Net Cash Flows From Noncapital 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Acquisitions of Capiial As.seis 
Capital Contribution From Other Funds 
-Net Ca.sh Flows Frotn Capital and Related 

Financing Activities 

Net Increase in Ca.sh and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash E<|uivalent.s at Beginning of Year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A P END OF VEAR 

Classified As: 

Business-Type 
Activiiies 

UlJIiiy 

Enterprise Fund 

S 3,023.7^4 

(2,602.755) 
(246.576) 

174.463 

1.175 
(1.58.450) 

(157.275) 

(10.099.048) 
10.099.048 

17.188 

128,914 

Govemmcnlai 

.Activities 
Internal Service 

Fund 

2,025,520 
(1.681.503) 

(344,017) 

146,102 S 

Cash in Bank 
Restricted .Assets 

$ - S 
146.102 

rOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUiVALENTS 146.102 S 



CITY OF WT̂ ST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
STAfEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIF/fARY FUNDS 
F-OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M). 201 1 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
U.sed hv Operatinti Activities: 

Business-Type 
.Activities 

Utility 
Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
.Activities 

Internal Service 
Fund 

Changes in Net Assets 
.Adiustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net 

Cash Used by Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
Decrease in Accounts Payable 
Increase in Due From Other Funds 
Increase (Decrease) in Dtie to Other Funds 
Decrease in Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay 

Total .Adjustments 

(427.784) $ 86.909 

586.233 
(39.303) 

(61) 
-

60,311 
(4,933) 

-
(5.089) 

-
(81.820) 

-
-

602.247 (86,909) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 174,463 $ 

fhe accompanying notes arc an integral part of ihis financial .siaiement. 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSEfS 

r-lDUClARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30. 2011 

ASSFTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Employees' 
Workmen's 

Compansaiion 
Reserve Fund 

$ 528.442 
6.029 

-
-

$ 534.471 

S 

S 

General 
Insurance 

Fund 

. 

-
2.000 

30.119 

:^2,119 

s 

s 

Hasley 
Cemeierv 

Fund 

631,582 
12.079 

-
-

643.661 

E.\ 

S 

s 

Total 
Nonmajor 

pendable Trust 
Funds 

1.160.024 
18.108 
2.000 

30.119 

L210,25l 

LIABILITIES 

Due To Other Funds 32.119 32.119 

NET ASSETS 

r-̂ e.served: 
W'orkmen's Compensation Claims 
Cemetery Maintenance 
Insurance Claims 

Total Net Assets 

534.471 

534.471 

643,661 

643.661 

534,471 

643.661 

1.178,132 

TOTAL LIABHTTIES AND 
NET ASSETS 5.^^4,471 32,119 S 643.661 $ 1.210,251 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan uf ihi.s financial slalcmenl. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 

FIDUCI.ARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Revenues 
Sales Ta.\ 
Lot Sales 
Insurance Proceeds 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

E.\pcndilures 

Hasley Cemetery 
Claims Paid 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiencv) of Revenues 
Over Espenditures 

Other Financinc Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers - In (Oui) 

Chaniie in Net As.scts 

Net Assets - Bcainninp 

NET ASSETS - ENDING 

Employees' 
Workmen's 

Compansaiion 
Reserve Fund 

S 
-
-

11 
11 

-

-

U 

-

11 

534.460 

S 534.471 

General 
Insurance 

Fut\d 

$ 24.000 
-

38.994 
-

62.994 

-
287.850 
287.850 

(224.S56) 

224.856 

_ 

S 

Haslev 
Cemeterv 

Fund 

5i 
10.800 

-
22 

10.822 

-
-
-

10.822 

-

10.822 

632,839 

S 643,661 

F^ 

$ 

s 

Tt>ial 

Nonmajor 
;pcndable Trust 

Fui\ds 

24,000 
10,800 
38.994 

33 
73.827 

-
287.850 
287.850 

(214,023) 

224,S56 

10.833 

1.167.299 

1.178.132 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of ihis financial statemeni. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR EiNDED J I I N E 30. 2011 

INTRODUCTION 

The City of West Monroe. Louisiana (the City) consists of an e\ecutive branch of government headed by a 
mayor and a legislative branch of governmeni consisting of five aldermen. The Ciiy's major operations 
include police and fire proieciton, garbage and trnsh collection, a senior center, street and drainage 
maintenance, administrative services, and oiher health and welfare activities. In addition, the Ciiy operates a 
Utility Enterprise Fund to provide water and sewerage services. 

Note I - Sumniarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Governmenial .Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates generally accepted 
accounting principles and reporting standards wiih respect to aciiviiies and transactions of state and 
local government cniiiies. The GASB has issued a codification of govcrnmontal accounting and 
financial reporting standards. This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are 
recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for stale and local governmeni. The 
financial reporting practices of the City comply with the financial reporting standards established 
by the GASB. 

A. Financial Reporting Entity 

.As the municipal governing aulhoriiy, for reporting purposes, the City of West Monroe, 
Louisiana is considered a .separate financial reporiing entity. The financial reporiing entity 
consists of (a) the primary governmem, ihe City of West Monroe, Louisiana, (b) organizations 
for which the primary governmeni is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for 
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion 
would cause the reporting entity's financial siaiements to be misleading or incomplete. 

GASB Staicmeni 14 established criteria lor dercrrnining which component units should be 
considered pan of the City o\' W'est Monroe. Louisiana for financial reporting purpo.ses. The 
basic criterion for including a poieruial component unit within the reporting entity is 
accounuU.iilily. The GASB has set fonh criteria to be considered in deiermining financial 
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's 
governing body and (1) ihe ability ot the City lo impo.se its will on that organization or (2) the 
potential for the organization to f)rovide specific financial benefits lo. or impose specific 
financial burdens on, the City. Organizations for which ihe City does nol appoint a \oting 
majority but are fiscally dependent on the Ciiv and organizaiions lor which the reporting eniiiy 
financial statements would be misleading if data of the organization is not included because of 
the nature or significance of the reUuionship. Based on die previous criteria, the Cily has 
determined thai the following component unit is part of the reporting entity: 

Fiscal Criieria 

Component Unit Year-End Used 

City Court of West June ,30 2 
Monrtie 

http://impo.se
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FIN.ANCLAL ST.ATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

A. Financial Reporting Entity (continued) 

The Cily Court of West Monroe meets only one of the criteria for the inclusion in this rept.m 
and it has noi been included. 

Since the Citv Court is legally separate and fi.scally independent of other state iind local 
governnienis and has a separately elected governing body, ii meets the definition of a primary 
governmeni as defined by G.A.SB Statemeni 14. 

GASB Statement 14 provides for ihe issuance of primary government financial statemenis that 
are separaie from those of the reporting entity. However, the Ciiy of Wcsi Monroe. Louisiana 
financial statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity's financial siatemenis. The 
accompanying primary government financial statements have been prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America as applied to 
governmental units. These financial statements are not intended to and do not report on the 
reporting entity but rather are intended to reflect only the financial statements of the City of 
West Monroe, Louisiana. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial staiements (ihe statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) reporl information of all of the nonfiduciary aciiviiies of the primary governmeni. 
For the most pan. the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these government-
wide siatements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separaleiy from business-type activiiies. which rely, 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The staiement of aciiviiies demonstrates the degree lo which the tlirect expenses of a given 
function, segment or component unit are offset by fjrogram revenues. Direct expenses are those 

requirements of a particular funciion. segment or component unit. Taxes and other iiems nol 
properly included among [program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
Resources that are dedicated internally are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. The Ciiy does not allocate general government (irrdirecl) expenses to other functions. 

'Separate financial staiements are provided for guvenunental funds, proprietary funds and 
fiduciary funds. However, (he fiduciarv funds are nol included in the government-wide 
iinjuicial suuements. Major individual governmeni funds and major individual enterprise funds 
are reported as .separate columns in the fund financial siatements. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M). 2011 

lOte 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies (coniinued) 

C Mca.surement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statemenis - The government-wide financial staiements are 
reported using the economic resources mcasuremeni focus and the accrual basis of 
accouniing. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibiliiy requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - The governmental fund financial statements 
are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and ihe modified 
accmal basis of accouniing. Revenues are recognized as .soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough (hereafter to pay liabilities for the current period. For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if ihey are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accouniing. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to claims and judgment, are recorded when payment is due. 

Sales taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and investment interest associated with the 
current fiscal period are all considered to be su.sceplible ro accrual and have been recognized 
n.s revenues of the current fi.scal period. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the town. 

Because governmental fund statemenis are presented using a measurement focus and basis of 
accouniing different from thai used in the government-wide statemeni' governmental 
column, a reconciliation is presented that i>riefly explains the adjustments necessary to 
reconcile ending net assets and the change in net as.seis. 

In the fund financial statement, financial transactions and accounts of the cily are organized 
on the basis of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fi.scal 
and separate accouniing entity, with a self4>alancing set of accounts recording cash and/or 
other financial resources together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, 
and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or 
attaining certain objectives in accordance witli special regulations, restriction or limitations. 

Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds ~ The financial statemerus of the (proprietary and 
fiduciary funds are reported using ihc economic resources tneasurcment focus and the 
accmal basis of accounting, similar lo ihe governmeni-wide siaiements described above. 

Each proprietary fund has the option under Governmental .Accounting Standards Board 
(G.ASB), Statement 20. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental E/uitics That Use Pt^oprietary Fund Accounfing to elect to apply all 
Financial .Accounting Standards Board (F.ASB) pronounccmenis issued afier November 30, 
1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB. The primary government's enterprise fund has 
elected to not apply F.ASBs issued after the applicable dale. 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINAN(:.'1AL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE .^0. 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant .Account Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
(continued) 

Proprietary funiis distinguish operating revenues and expen.ses from nonoperuling items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonofierating revenues and 
expenses. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The financial activities of the City are reconled in individual funds, each of which is deemed 
lo be a separate accounting eniily. The City uses fund accounting to report on its financial 
position and results of operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal 
compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain 
government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. 

1. Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund ~ This fund accounts for all activities of the City not specifically required 
to be accounted for in other funds. Included are transactions for .scrviees such as general 
government, health services, public safely, regulatory services and social services. 

1986 Sale.\ Tax 75% Capital Fund - These funds account for monthly transfers from 
sales tax collections 15% of the one cent sales tax pa.'ised in 1986. The funds are 
f)redum!naiely used for capital expenditures. 

2007 Deht Capita! Fund ~ These t'unds are predominately used for capital expenditures. 
The income is provided by proceeds from general obligation bonds for thai purpose. 

2. Debt Service Funds - These funds are used to accounl for the accumulation of resources 
for, and ihe payment of. general long-term debi principal, interest and relaied costs. 

3. Capital Projects Funds - Tht;sc funds are used to accounl for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or consiruction of major capital facilities. 

4. Proprietary Funds 

Utilities Enterprise Fund - This fund is to account for the provision of water and 
sewerage to residents of the City of West Monroe. This fund is used ro account for 
operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including 
tiepreciaiion) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis 
be financed or recovered primarily through u.ser charges, or (b) where iho governing body 
has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purposes. 
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CITY OE WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30, 2011 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (coniinued) 

D. Fund Accounting (coviiinued) 

4. Proprietary Funds (continued) 

Internal Sen-ice Fund - This fund accounts for the financing of services provided by one 
fund to other funds of the Cily. The Self Insurance Fund, which purchases an insurance 
policy and accounts for third-party administrative costs and claims, is reported as an 
internal service fund. 

5. Hduciary Funds 

Trust Funds - These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for the Individuals, private organizations, other governments 
and/or other funds. These include Expendable Trust Funds. Expendable trusi funds are 
accounted for in essentially the same manner as oovernmental funds. 

& • 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Under state law. the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest bearing demand 
deposits, nioney marker accovmts. ot time deposits vvi\h siaie banks organized under Louisiana 
law and national banks having their princi[);ii offices in Louisiana. 

For pur[)osos of the statemeni of cash flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity date of three months or less when 
purchased. 

F. Investments 

Deposits with original maturity dates exceeding 90 days are cla.ssified as investments. 
Investments are ref>orted at fair value. The Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) is an 
invesimenl pool established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public eniiOes of the State of 
Louisiana to aggregate funds for investment. LAMP operates in accordance with state laws and 
regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. 

G. Noncurrent Receivables 

N(mcuneni portions of long-term recci\ables due to government funds are reported on their 
balance sheets, in .spite of their spending measurement focus. Special reporting treatments are 
used 10 indicate that Ihey should not he considered "available spendable resources" since ihey 
do not represent net curreni as.seis, Recogniti(jn of governmenial lund type revenues 
represented by noncurrcnt receivables is deferred until they become curreni receivables. 

H. Bad Debts 

Uncollectible amounts for ad valorem taxes and convention center receivables arc generally not 
significant. As a result, the direct write-off method for recognizing bad debts is used. Under 
this method, the receivable is charged to expense when the accounl is deemed to be 
uncollectible. For customers' utility receivables, the allowance method is used to account for 
uncollectible amounts. Under this method, an allowance account is set up for whai is deemed 
to be uncollectible. 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST.ATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JL-NE 30. 2011 

Note ! - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I. Inventories 

Special reporting Ireaimenis are applied lo governmental fund inventories to indicate that they 
do noi represeni "available spendable resources", even though ihey are a component of net 
current a.ssets. Such amounts arc generally offset by fund balance reserve accounts. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cosi (firsi-in. firsi-out) or markei. Inventory in the 
GcEieral Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditure al the limo individual inventory items are used. 

.1. Short-Term Interfund Rcccivables/Payablcs 

During the cour.se of operation, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for 
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds ur due 
lo other fimds on the fund financial statements' balance sheet. In ihe process of aggregating 
data for the statement of nei asseis and the statement of activities, some amounts reported as 
interfund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or reclassified. Interfund 
receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize Ihc "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the governmental activiiies column. 

K. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include prttperty. plant, equif)ment and infrastructure asseis (which is 
normally immovable and of value only lo the City, such as roads, bridges, streets and 
sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items), are reported in the ajjplicable 
governmental or business-type columns in the government-wide financial stalcmenis. 
Purchased or constructed capital asseis are valued at historical cost or esiimatcd historical cost. 
Donated fixed asseis are recorded at iheir t'air market value at rhe date of donarion. 

Infrastructure constructed f)rior lo July 1. 2000 has been recorded at estimated historical cost. 
The estimated historical cost for years prior lo July 1, 2000 was based on capiial outlay 
expenditures reported by the City's engineer who performed a road, street and bridge inventory 
for the City. The costs of normal maintenanec and repairs that do not add lo the asset's value or 
maierially extend an asset's u.seful life, are noi capitalized. 

Capital assets utilized in the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the 
governmental tund financial statements. Depreciation expense is recorded in the governmeni-
wide financi.̂ 1 statements, as well as the proprieiary funds financial statements. 

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated on ihe straighldine method over the 
assets' estimated useful life. There is no depreciation recorded for land and construction in 
progress. Generally, estimaied useful lives are as follows; 

Vehicles, Machinery and Equipmeni 5-20 years 
Buildings and Other Improvements .30-40 years 
Infrastructure 20-40 veurs 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA11- :MENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note \ - Summary of Significant Account Policies (coniinued) 

L. Electrical Systeiti Operating Agreement 

On December 31. 1988. the City Council of West Monroe authorized an operating agreemcm 
between the City of West Monroe and Louisiana Power and Light (LP&L) for the operation by 
LPL<:L of the electric .system within the corporate limits of West Monroe for a period of twenty-
five years. The agreement provides that LP&.L will pay lo the City three perceni of gross 
receipts (as defined) collected from the sale of elecrric service to residential and commercial 
customers within the City. 

M. Lease Obligations 

The City lea.ses various assets under boili operating and capita! Iea.se agreements. In the 
governnieni-wide financial staiements. capiial leases and the related lease obligaiions are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statemeur of net assets. 

N. Componsale<l Absences 

Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay. and other employee benefit amounts are accrued when 
incurred in enterprise funds under the accruid basis of accounfing. Employees of the City earn 
vacation pay in varying amounts ranging from 10 to 28 working days per year depending upon 
length of service. At the end of each year, emplovees may carry forward earned vacation time. 
Up 10 a maximum of 40 days of unu.sed vacation is paid to an employee upon reliremeni. 
separation, or death ai hourly rates being earned by ihat employee upon separation. 

Firemen and policemen may receive up to one year's sick leave per illness as prescribed under 
Louisiana law. For all other City employees, sick leave is accumulated at rates ranging up to 12 
days per year. Unused sick leave mav be carried forward, however, up to a maximum of 36 
days of unused sick leave is paid to an etnplovee upon retirement, separation, or death at hourly 
rales being earned by that empknee upon separation. 

O. Long-Term Liabilities 

Bond premiums and discounts, as well iis i.ssuanee eosts, are recognized in the period the bonds 
are issued. Bond proceeds are reported as other financing stnnces net of the applicable 
premium or discount. Issuance costs, even if withheld fn)m ihe actual net proceeds received, 
are reported as debt .service expenditures. 

P. Dedicated Revenues 

Two cents of the sales tax revenue as.sessment is dedicated as tbllows: one cent is dedicated to 
capital improvements; seventy-five perceni of the remaining cent is dedicated for purchase and 
improvements of asseis having a life of one year or greater, related professional services and 
programs, and for paying capital improvements, construction, and repairs; the remaining 
twenty-five percent shall be used for general operations. 

29 

http://Iea.se


CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Account Policies (coniinued) 

Q. Fund Equity 

G.ASB Siaietnent No. 54 establishes standards I'or five fund balance classifications that 
compri.se a hierarchy based primarily on the exioni to which a government is bound to observe 
constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in government funds. The 
nonspendable fund balance cla.ssificaiion includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are eiiher (a) nol in spendable form - prepaid items or inventories', or (b) legally or 
contractually required to be maintained iruacl. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining ftjur classifications: 
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources 
either (a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
govenimenis; or (b) im[)osed by law dirough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Cornmiiied Fund Balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal resolutions or ordinances of the city aldermen - the 
government's fiighest level of decision making authority. Those conmiitted amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the city aldermen remove the specified u.se by taking the 
same type of action imposing the commitment. This cla.ssificaiion also includes coniraclual 
obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically commilled for 
use in saiisfying those contractual requirements. 

Assigned Fund Balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the ciiy's 
"intent" lo be sued for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The ciiy 
aldcniien and management have ihc authoriiv to assign amounts to be u.sed for specific 
purpt.̂ ses, .Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative b^ilances) 
that arc reported in governmental funds, other than the general fund, thai are nol classified as 
nonspendable and are neither restricted not commilled. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the general 
fund. It is alsi.t used to reporl negative fund balanees in other governmental funds. 

Wbeti both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use. it is the citv's policy to 
use externally restricted resources firsi. then unrestricted resources ~ committed, a.ssigned and 
unassigned ~ in order as needed. 

R. Accounting Estimates 

The [)re[)araiion of financial sraiemonts in conformity with accouniing principles generally 
accepted in the United Slates of America requires management to make certain estimates and 
assumptions. Those estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statemenis. They may also affect 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide 
financial statements during the reporting period. .Actual results could differ from these 
esiimatcs. 
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CIT..Y_Q£WEST MONROE. LOLHSIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNl- 30. 2011 

Note 2- Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Castchiial Credit Risk - Deposits 

Ttie custodial credit'risk is ihc risk thai in the event of a bank failure, the City's de[)osits may not 
be returned to it. The City's policy to ensure there is no exposure to this risk is to require each 
financial institution to pledge its own .securities to cover any amount in exce.ss of Federal 
Depository Insurance Coverage. Louisiana Revised Statute 39-.1229 imposes a staiuiory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advcrii.se and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of 
being notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
.Accordingly, the City had no custodial risk related to its deposits at June 30, 2011. 

At June 30. 2011, the City has cash and cash equivalents (book balances net of overdrafts.) in the 
amount of $6,156,899. 

These deposits are staled at cost, which approximates market. Under state law. these deposits (or 
the resulting bank balances) mu.st be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market Vcilue of ihe pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at ail limes equal the amount on deposit wiih the fiscal agent. 

These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial 
bank that is mutually acceptable by both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances) at 
June 30, 201 1, are secured as follows: 

Bank Bal anccs %...3M2M^ 

I-edcral Deposits Insuriince S 100.000 

Pledgetl Securities (Uncollaleralized) 9.4.̂ 8..363 

TO'LAL $..,9.53.8...i63 

Governmental Funds Cash % 4,850,773 
Enierjirise Funds Cash 146.102 
Fiduciary Funds Cash $ 1,160.024 
TOTAL BOOK BALANCES BY FUND TYPE S . 6,J.56.,.8..99 

During the year ended June 30. 2011, the city set up ;in imprest deposit accounl with Crawford and 
C*)mpany in the amount of $16,800 to p;jy li;ibiliiy i:laims brought against the city and to perform 
all reporting requiremenls that are requireil in regards to these claims. Each month, the city is 
billed for the amount of claims ihal were paid in the preceding month in order to replenish the 
imprest account back up to the original .Si 6.800. 

Note 3 - Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments 

The cu.siodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, (he government will not be able tî  recover the value of its investmenls or collateral 
.securities that arc in the possession of an outside pany. The Cily had no cust(»dial credit risk 
related lo its investments at June 30. 2011. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES r̂O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 3 - Investments (continued) 

Under slate law, the Cily may invest funds in obr!gaii(nis of the United Siaies, in federally-insured 
investments, or in lime deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks 
having their principal offices in Louisiana. .At June 30. 2011, the Ciiy had the following 
investments stated al cost, which approximaies market: 

Louisiana .Asset Management Pool S, .1.8..IM 

Interest Rate Risk 

In accordance wiih its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair market 
values by limiting investment portfolio to "money market investments", which are defined as 
creditworthy, highly liquid invesitnenis with maturilies of one year or less. Although there may be 
certain circumstances in which longer-term securities are utilized, the general use of long-term 
securities shall be avoided. 

Credit Risk 

The City's Invesmicnt policy limits investments to fully insured and/or tully-collateralt/ed 
certificates of deposits and direct and indirect obligations of U.S. government agencies. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Ciiy's investment policy limits the City's investment instruments to; I) certificates of deposit: 
2) certain direct obligations of the U.S. Government; 3) bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence 
of indebtedness i.ssued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed 
by the full failh and credit of the United States of America; and 4) the Louisiana .Asset 
Management Pool. 

The Cily participates in the Louisiana Asset .Management Pool (LAMP). 'Ihe LAMP is an 
investment pool established as a cooperative endeavor to enable public entities of the State of 
Louisiana to aggregate fimds for investment. 

Note 4 - Fund OeficitK 

The following funds had deficits at June 30. 2011; 

General Fund S 487.921 

Non-Major Funds 
Special Revenue Funds 

Mi.scellaneous Projects and Grants Fund S 10.262 
Debt Service Funds 

Firemen's Pension Merger S 15,881 
2003 Debt Service Fund S 539,252 

Capital Project Funds 
Detention Basin S 358.609 

The deficit in the special revenue funds and debt service funds are to be financed wiih future 
revenues or transfers from other funds. The deficits in the capiial [irojeci funds will be funded with 
future drawdowns from state and federal agencies and/or transfers from the general fund. 



CIT^' OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN^fS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JlfNE 30. 2011 

Note 5 - .Ad Valorem Taxes 

Property taxes arc due as of January l. An enforceable lien auaches to the property wiih unpaid 
taxes and is sold at a tax sale. 

Prtjjjerty Tnx Calendar 

.Assessment f3aie January I. 2010 
Le\y f)ate September 1. 2010 
TaxBills Mailed January 5. 2011 
Total Taxes .Are Due January 31. 2011 
Penalties and Interest are Added February 1, 2011 
Tax Sales - 2010 Delinqueni Property June 14-16. 2011 

The Ouachita Parish Tax Assessor establishes assessed values each year on a uniform basis at the 
following ralif)S to fair market value; 

10% Land 15% Machinery 
lO'-r. Residential Improvemetiis 15% Commercial Improvements 
\5% Industrial Improvements 25% Public Service Properties. 

Excluding Land 
The ad valorem tax millagc is as follows: 

Mills 
General Ad Valorem Tax 6.97 
Street Maintenance 1.65 

TOTAL 8.62 

Note 6 - Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable at June 30. 2011, consisted of the following: 

Governmental Proprietary 
Funds Funds Total 

Accounts Receivable S 2.440.545 S 5'̂ 9.3S2 $ 3.039.927 
Oiher Receivables 2l2.(17[j : 212.070 

TOTAL 'kldoZM^ t.^>>M 5\.^.^^i.^^7 
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CITY OF WES1' MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOfES 1T) THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .lUNE 30, 2011 

Note 7 - Due From Other Governments 

The amounts due from other governments at June 30. 2011 are as follows: 

Louisiana Highway Saleiy Commissiun S 60.549 

Ciiy (tf Monroe. Louisiana Sales Tax 969,210 
Louisiana Department of f^cvcnue 15,208 
High Intensity Dnig Trafficking .Area Grant 9.466 
LA Department of Transportation and Development 10,897 
Corporation for National and Community Service 42,309 
I.')epanmcni of Public Justice 46,228 
Department of Housing S: Urban Developtnent 5.005 
Ouachita Parish 531 
Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 12.711 

TOTAL $.1.1.72,114 

Note 8 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for ihe year ended June 30. 2011 is as follows: 

Primarv Government 

Government Activities: 
NonT)epreciablc .As.seis: 

Land 
Ct.mstruction In Progress 

Total 
Depreciable .As.seis: 

Buildim:!s 
Improvements 
Eciuipmenr 
Vehicles 
?nfrastnjciure 

Toud at Historical Cost 
Less .Accumulaied 

Depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
tlquipfiienl 
Vehicles 
Infrasirticiure 

Total Accumulated 
De[.ireciciiion 

Government Activities Capital 
A.s.sets, Net 

June-^0, 2010 
Bdinncc 

$ 6.124.735 
251,314 

6.376,049 

25,436.109 
2,447.388 
5.086,281 
5.501,-501 

57.919,549 
S96..">90.828 

S( ^^814.609) 
( 395.871) 
(. 4..5()5.9o6) 
( 4.916.579) 
( 40.745.559) 

( 60.378.584) 

U2^mJ!}A 

S 

.s 

$( 

SL 

.Additions 

.. 
: 

-
-

198.338 
509.324 

1.̂ ;09.S.58 
2.617.520 

634.519) 
80,414; 

151.808) 
271.309) 

1.690.021) 

2.828.071) 

....^iQ,55JJ 

Deletions 

S 
_ 
-

-
-
-
-
-

$ 

.s 
-
-
-
-

-

•*. • :.i.-.-:=z.:.z:.-•,... . 

June .̂ 0, 20n 
Balance 

$ 6.124.735 
251.314 

6.376.049 

25.436.109 
2.447,388 
5.284,619 
6.010.825 

59,829.407 
$ 99,008..348 

${ 10,449.128) 
( 476.285) 
( 4,657.774) 
( 5.187,888) 
f 42,435.580) 

( 63.206,655) 

S..4|J.n.742 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FTNAN(:iAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 8 - Capital Assets (continued) 
Primarv Government 

June 30. 2010 June 30. 2011 
Balance .Additions Dcleiions Balance 

Busines.s-Tvfic Aetivirios: 
Non-Depreciable .Assets: 

Land % 57.7.50 S ~ % - S 57.750 
Construction in Progress 7,767,873 9..?44.202 ( 1.609.977) 15.502.098 

Total " 7.825.623 9.344,202 ( 1,609,977) 15.559.848 
Depreciable A.ssets: 

Buildings 73,436 - - 73.436 
Water p1ani 6.164,349 1,928,719 - 8,093.068 
Treaiment Plant 10.387.859 436.105 - 10.823.964 
Equipment 1.693,281 : : 1.693.281 

Totals at Historical Cost 18.318,925 2.364.824 - 20.683,749 
Less -Accumulated 

Depreciation for: 
Buildings ( 73..361) ( 15) - ( 73.405) 
Water Plant ( 3.762.902) ( 175.842) - ( 3.938.744) 
Treatment Plam ( 7,087.665) ( 315.067) - ( 7.402.732) 
Equipment ( 1,142.652) ( 95.311) : ( 1,237,96.3) 

Total Accumulated 
Depreciation ( 12.066.609) .(_ 586.235) : f 12.652.844) 

Business-Tvpe Activities 
Ca[)ital Assets, Net 514.Q7L939 5ilL.I.22J9J U\.m9S22}. $215^0,753 

Depreciation ex[)en-se for the year ended June 30. 2011 was charged to firnctions of the primary 
government as follows: 

Governmeni Activiiies: 
General Government S 1.892,711 
Public .Safety 230.615 
Public Works 122,627 
Culture and Recreation 41.847 
Community Development 76.298 
Ike Hamillon Expo Center 445.225 
Conveniion Center 18.748 
Health and Welfare ^ 

Total Depreciation Expense-
Governmental .Acti\iiies Ŝ _,-.-.̂ f̂ !'r.S...Q.7T 

Businc-SS-Type .Activities: 
VuWiks S. ,58.6.2.35 

Note 9 - Restricted A-S-scts and Related Resources 

-At June 30. 2011, all restricted assets were in the form of demand deposits. These a.ssets represent 
amounts held for utility cu.stomer deposits and cash for re-serve and sinking fund requirements. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans 

CITY OF WEST MONROE-SPONSORED PENSION PLANS 

Effective January 1. 1986, the City-Sponsored West .Monroe Firemen's Pension and Relief System 
merged with the State Firefighters' Retirement System. As a result of that merger, the City of West 
Monroe was indebted to the State Firefighters' Retirement System for S580.362 at June 30, 2011 
which represents the remaining principal balance of the accnjed liability for tho-se employees 
transferred to ihe Firefighters' Retirement System. This amount is being paid over 30 years at 7% 
interest. The City paid principal and interest payments of .$171,340 during fiscal year 2011 from 
sales tax revenues. 

STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

ML'NICIPAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF LOUISIANA 

Substantially all city employees, except firemen and policemen are members of the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), public 
employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. 
The MERS is composed of two distinct plans. Plan .A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit 
provisions. All members participate in Plan A. 

.All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week and elected city officials are eligible to 
participate in the system. Under the MERS. a member who retires at or after age 60 with at lea.st 10 
years of creditable service, ai or after age 55 with 25 years of creditable service, or ai any age with al 
least 30 years of creditable .service is entilled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 
3 percent of the member's final cotnpensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. 

Final compensation is a member's average monthly earnings during the highest 36 con-secutive 
uKJUths or joined months if service was interrupted. .A member who withdraws from active service 
prior to retirement eligibility is entitled to receive bcnefils beginning on Ihe normal retirement dale. 
assuming completion of ten years of creditable service and no prior refund of contributions. The 
system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits arc established by state statute. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 9.25 percent of their salaries 
to the System. As provided by Louisiana Revi.sed Statute 11:103. ihe employer conlributions arc 
determined by actuarial valualion and arc subjeci lo change each year ba.sed on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The current actuarially determined rate is 14.25 percent of annual 
covered payroll. The City's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 
2011. 2010 aiKl 2009 were S825.078. $754,559 .-md $731,937. respectively, etjual to the re(iuired 
conlributions for each year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial siatements and 
required supplementary infomiation for the System. Thai report may be obtained by writing to ihe 
Municipal Employees' Retirement Svsiem. 7937 Office Park Blvd., Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70809. 
orbvcallinu (22.5) 925-4810. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO'THb: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE.^0,2011 

Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (coniinued) 

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES' RE'TIREMENT SYS'TEM 

All full-lime police officers engaged in law enforcement are eligible to participate in the Municipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS). a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), public 
employee retirement system (PERS). controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. 
Member.s who retire al or after age 55 with 12 years of creditable service, at or afier age 50 w iih 20 
years of creditable .service, or at any age with 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement 
benefit, (.Payable monthly for life, equal lo 3-1/3 percent of the member's average final compensaiion 
multiplied by his years of creditable Service, not to exceed 100 percent of his average final 
compensaiion 

.Average final compensaiion is the average annuid earned compensation of a member for any period 
of 36 successive or joined months of service thai produces the highest average. 'The system also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are esiablishcd by state statute. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires coveretl emplovees to contribute 7..50 percent of iheir salaries 
to the system. The City is ret]uired lo eonuibulc 25 percent of covered employees' salaries. As 
pro\ided by Loui.<;ianc'i Revised Statute 11:103. the employer comnbuiions arc deier/?iincd by actuarial 
valualion and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal 
year. 

"The City's conlributions to the System for the \cars ending June 30. 2011. 2010 and 2009 were 
S817.528. S325.077 and $284,036, respectively, equal to the required contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report thai includes financial statements and 
required supplemontarv information for the System. 'That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Svstem. 8401 United Plaza Blvd.. Baton Rouge. Louisiana 
70809-7017. or by calling (225) 929-7411. ' 

FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

All full-lime firefighters for the City who are engaged in fire [iroteclion are eligible to participate in 
the Firefighters' Reiiroment System (FRS), a multiple-employer (cosi-sharing), [lubiic employee 
reliremeni system (PERS). controlled and administered by a separate board of trustees. A member 
who has completed 20 years of creditable service, has been a member al least I year, and has 
reached ihc age of 50 is eligible fctr reliremeni. 

.A member with ai least 12 years of service who has reached the age of 55 is eligible for retirement, 
provided he has been a member for ai least 1 vear. Upon retirement, the benefit amount is 3-1/3 
perceni of average final com[)ensation multiplied b> years of creditable service, not lo e.\cccd his 
average final compensaiion. Average final compensation is the member's average annual earned 
compen.sation for an> period of 36 successive or joined months of service that produce (he highest 
average. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state 
stature. 
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CITY OE WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NO'TES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMEN TS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 10 - Pension and Retirement Plans (coniinued) 

Funding Policy - State statute requires covered employees to coniribuie 8.00 percent of ihcir 
salaries lo the system. 'The Cily is required to contribute 21.5 perceni of covered employees' 
.salaries. .As providcil by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103. the employer contribulions are 
determined by actuarial valualion and are subjeci to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's contribution to the System for the years ending June 
30, 2011. 2010 and 2009 were $324.-548. $196,490, and $160,733. respectively, equal U) the 
required contributions for the year. 

The Sy.^tcm issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statemenis 
and required sup[)lemenlary information for the Sysiern. That reporl may be obtained by w-riling to 
the Firefighters' Retirement Svstem, 3100 Brentwood Drive. Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70809-1752, 
or by calling (225) 925-4060. ' 

LOUISIANA STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The City Judge is eligible to participate in the Louisiana Stale Employees' Retirement System 
(LASERS), a multiple-employer (cosi-sharing), public employee retirement system (PERS). 
controlle<l and administered by a separate board of trustees. L.ASERS provides benefits for certain 
elected officials and officials appointed by the governor. A member who has completed 20 years of 
creditable service is eligible for retirement. Upon reliremeni, ihe benefit, amoutit is 2-1/2 percent of 
average compensation multiplied by the nuinber of years of creditable service. Average 
compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensaiion for the highest 
thirty-six consecutive months of employment. Judges, court officers, and certain elected officials 
receive an additional annual retirement benefii equal to ] % of average compensation multiplied by 
the number of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. The sy.stem also provides 
death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by slate siatute. 

Funding Policv - State siatute requires covered employees to contribute 11.50 percent of their salaries 
to the system. The City is required to contribute 22 percent of covered employees' .salaries. .As 
provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103. the employer conlributions are determined by actuarial 
valuation and are subiect to change each vear based on the results of rhe valuation for the prior fiscal 
year. The City's contribution to the plan for the years ending June 30. 2011. 2010 and 2009 were 
$9,307. S7.787 and $7,555, respectively, equal to the required conlributions tor the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supf>lemcntary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing lo 
the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, 3401 United Plaza Blvd., 13alon Rt)uge, 
Louisiana 70S09. or by calling (225) 9224)600. 

Note 11 - Po.stcmploymcnt Health Care Benefits 

Plan Description. The Ciiy of West Monroe's medical benefits are provided through a 
comprehensive medical plun and are made available to employees upon actual reliremeni. 

The employees arc covered by several retirement systems with similar eligibility provisions. In the 
absence of specific details about which employees are covered by each sy.stem. we have used the 
following reliremeni eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions as representative of the eligibility: 25 
years of ser\'ice at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of service. Complete plan provisions are 
included in the official jilan documents. 

38 



CITY OF WEST .MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT'EMENl'S 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011 

Note 1J - Postemphyment Health Care BcntTits (continued) 

Contribution Rates. Em[)loyees do not contribute to their fiosi employment benefits costs until 
they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provi.slons and contrifiulion nties 
are contained in the official plan documents. 

Fund Policy. Until 2fX)8, the City of West Monroe recognized the co.si of providing post-
em[)loyment medical benefit.s (the Cily of West Monroe's portion of the reiiree medical benefit 
premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost of the 
post-employnient benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In fiscal year ending June 30. 2011, the City 
of West Monroe's portion of health care funding cost for reiirod emj>loycos totaled S45.288. 'These 
amounts were applied toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligation as shown in the following table. 

Effective with the Fiscal Year beginning July 1. 2008. the City of West Monroe implemented 
Governmeni Accounting Sianriards Board Statement Number 45. Accounting and Financial 
Reporting hy Employers for Post employment Benefits Other than Pensions (G.ASB 45). 

Annual Re(iuired Contribution. The City of West Monroe's Annual Required Contribution 
(.ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in accordance with G.ASB 45. The Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) is the sum of the Normal Cost plus the contribution to amortize the Actuarial 
.Accrued Liability (A.AL). A level dollar, closed amortization period of 30 years (the maximum 
amortization period allowed by G.ASB 43/45) has been used for the post-emjiloymcnt benefits. The 
total ARC for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 2010 is $77,973. as set forth below: 

Medical 
Normal Cosi S 39.494 
30-vcar UAL amonizaiion amount 38,449 

.Annual required contribution (ARC) S 77.943 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset). The table below shows the Cily of West 
.Monroe's Net Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation (.Asset) for fiscal year ending 
June 30. 2011; 

-Medical 
Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 
(A.ssct) 7/1/2010 ^ S 73.808 
.\nriual required contribution + 77.943 
UncTesi on Net 0?Eh Obligation 
(.A.ssct) ^ +2.9.52 
.ARC AdjustmcTU r*-_̂ 8̂ 
OPEB Cost 76.627 
Contribution 0 
Curreni year retiree premium - 45,288 
Change in Net 0 P F : B Obligation + 31.339 
Ending Nei OPEB Obligation (A.s.set) 
6/30/2011 % 105.147 

9̂ 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE- LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note II -Postemploymcnt Health Care Benefits (continued) 

I'he following lable shows the City of West .Monroe's annual post employment benefits (PEB) 
cost, percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) 
liability (asset): 

Post Percentage of Net OPEB 
Employtnent Annual OPEB Annual Cost Obligation 
Benefit Fi<;cal Year Ended Cost Conirihuted (A.ssei) 

Medical June 30.2011 $76-627 .59.109;: S105.14; 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the City of West 
Monroe made no contributions to its post employment benefits plan. The plan was nol funded at 
all, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio of zero. As of July 1, 2010. the most recent 
actuarial valuation, the Actuarial .Accnjed Liability (A.AL) was $664,923. which is defined as that 
portion, as determined by a particular actuarial cost method (the City of West Monroe uses the Unit 
Credit Cost Method), of the actuarial present v;due of post employment plan benefits and expenses 
which is not provided by norma! cost. Since (he plan was not funded in fiscal year 2011, the entire 
actuarial accrued liability of $664,923 was unfunded. 

Medical 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 664.923 
Actuarial VaUic of Plan .Assets 0 
Unfunded Act. .Accrued Liability 
(U.AAL) ' S 664.923 
Funded Ratio (.Act. Val. Asseis/AAL) 0% 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) $13,147,760 
U.AAL as a percentage of covered 
payroll 5.1^^ 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Aciu;irial valuations involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the pr(.>b;ibiltiy of events far into the future. The actuarial 
valualion for posi employment benefiis includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) turnover 
rate; (2) retirement rale: (3) health care cost trend rate: (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate 
(investment return assumption): and (6) the period to which the costs apply ([>asi. current, or future 
years of service by empU^yees). .Actuarially determined amounts are subjeci to continual revision 
as actual results are compared to past cxpocialions and new esiimates are made about the fulure. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefiis provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan (the plan as unders!<iod by the Ciiy of West Monroe and its employee plan 
members) at ihe time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the City of West 
Monroe and its plan members to thai point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting 
purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding 
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the City of West Monroe and plan members in 
the future. Consisieni with the long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, ihe actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility 
in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .)0. 2011 

Note 11 • Postemploymcnt Health Care Benefits (continued) 

Actuarial Cost Method. The .ARC is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. 
The employer portion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined bv 
projecting the current cosi levels using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected 
amount to the valuation d'Mc using the oiher described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including 
the investment return assumption (discount rate), mortality, and turnover. 

.Actuarial Value of Plan Assets. Since the OPEB obligation has not as yet been funded, there are 
not any asseis. U is anticipated thai in fulure valuations, should funding take place, a smoothed 
market value consisieni with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6. as provided in paragraph number 
125 of GASB Statement 45 will be used. 

Turnover Rate. An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as doscribetJ by 
administrative staff has been used. The rales, when applied to the active employee census, produce 
an annual turnover of approximately 5%. The rates for each age are below: 

Percent 
Auc Turnover 
18-
26-
41 -
55+ 

25 
40 
54 

6.0% 
4.0% 
3.0-̂ ^ 

It has also been assumed that 20% of future eligible retirees will decline coverage because of the 
retiree contributions required. 

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Rcquircnient.s. Based on past experience, it has been 
assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence six years after the earliest retirement (D.R.O.P. 
entry) eligibility, as described above under "Plan Descriptions". The six years consists of the three 
year D.R.O.P. period plus three additional years. Medical benefiis are provided to employees upon 
actual retirement. The employees are covered by several retirement .systems with similar eligibility 
provisions. In the absence of specific details about which em[)ioyees are covered by each system, 
we have used the following retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) [)rovisions as representative of 
the eligibility: 25 years of .service ar any age: or. age 60 and 10 years of service. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate). GASB Stateineni 45 states that the investmem 
return assumpiion should be the estimated long-tenn investment yield on the investments that are 
expected to be used to finance the paymeni of benefits. Since the ,ARC is not currently being 
funded and not expected to be funded in the near future, we have performed this valuation using a 
4% annual investment return assumption. 

Health Care Co.st Trend Rate. The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on 
projections performed by the Office of the Acluary at the Centers for Medicare &. Medicaid 
Services as published in National Health Care Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013. 'Table 3; 
National Health Expenditures. Aggregate and per Capita .Amounts. Percent Distribution and 
.Average Annual Perceni Change by Source of Funds: Selecie<l Calendar Years 1990-2013. released 
in January. 2004 by the Health Care Financing .Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and 
Local" rates for 2008 through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 graduated 
down to an ultimate annual rale of 5-0'i^ for 2016 and later. 
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Note 11 - P(»stemploymeni Health Care Benefits (continued) 

Mortality Rate. The 1994 Grou[) .Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on 
a fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rate and 509r: of ihe unloaded female mortality 
rates, was used. This is a published mortality table which was designed to be used in determining 
the value of accrued benefits in defined benefit pension plans. 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits. The "value of benefiis" ha.s been assumed to be the 
portion of the premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree 
and has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial pre.̂ ient value of OPEB benefiis to be 
paid. While the retiree pays for the "cost" of the medical benefits, the retiree premium is the 
blended active/retired rate before Medicare eligibility. Since GASB 45 mandates that "unblended" 
rates applicable to the coverage provided to retirees be used there is ihus an implied subsidy by ihc 
em[)loyer. We have estimated the "unblended" rates for retirees before Medicare eligibility. It has 
been assumed that the total retiree rate before Medicare eligibility is l.W^' of the blended 
active/retired rate, with rhe implied subsidy thus being 30?^ of the blended aciive/retiree premium. 

Note 12 - Long-Term Debt 

Governmental Activities: 
Bonds and Notes Payable: 

Certificates of Indebtedness. 

Beginning 
BalancL' .Addition- Reductions 

.Amounts Due 
Ending Within 
Balance One Year 

Series 2003 
Scries 2005 
Series 2006 
Series 2007 
Series 2009 
Series 2009 (Note 14) 
Scries 2010 (Note 14) 

Community Development 
Block Grant for 
Economic Developmeni 

Slate Firefighters" 
Reliremeni System 

Total Bonds and 
Notes Pavable 

$ 3.495.000 
165,000 
460.000 

4.205.000 
2.910.000 
3.452.572 

295.373 

403.657 

702.525 

16.089.127 

$ 
-
. 
-
-

997,510 
940.317 

-

_ 

1.937.827 

S 825.000 
30.000 
65,000 

1-55,000 
275.000 

-
-

25.020 

122,163 

1,497.183 

$ 2.670.000 
135.000 
395.000 

4,050,000 
2.635,000 
4,450.082 
1,235,690 

378.637 

580,362 

16,529.771 

$ 855,000 
30,000 
70.000 

165.000 
285.000 

-
-

25,000 

1,̂ 0.714 

1.560,728 

Other Liabilities: 
Accrued Heart and 

Lung Disability 833.566 
.Accrued Vacaiion. Sick 

And Coinpcnsatory Time 
Governmental Activities 793.659 
Business-Type .Activities 135,983 

Total Other Liabilities 1.763,208 

Total Governmental Activities 
Long-Term Debt 

i9.409 

29.409 

165.412 

4.925 

170,3.' 

668.1-54 48.221 

823,068 823.068 
I3L058 131.0-58 

1.622.280 1,002.34: 

il7J352.335 $1.9^1236 H,m.5ZQ Slj^JiMSJ. $2,56̂ ,075 

42 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA'TEiMENTS 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Note 12- Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Payments on ihe bonds and notes payable that pertain to the City's governmental activities are made 
bv the debt service funds. The accrued heart and lunti di.sabilitv and accmed vacation, sick and 
compensatory time will be liquidated primarily by the General Fund. Paymeni of compensated 
absences is dependent upon many factors; therefore, the liming of future payments is not readily 
detenu in able. 

Principal and interest requirements to retire the City's bonds and notes payable obligations are as 
follows: 

Certificates of Indebtedness 
Year Ended 

June 30. 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Total 

Year Ended 
June .30. 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2028 

Total 

Year Ended 
June-30. 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2031 

2031 

Total 

Series 
Principal 

S 70.000 
75.000 
80.000 
80.000 
90.000 

_ 

i.:mmi 

Series 
Principal 

S 165,000 
170.000 
180,000 
185,000 
195,000 

1.115.000 
1,395.000 

645,000 

2006 
Interest 

$ 22,500 
17.969 
13.125 
8,125 
2.813 

> 

S 6ft,5a2 

Certificates 
2007 

Inicvesi 
S 167.437 

1.59.063 
151.213 
143.912 
136.313 
.553.895 
295.099 
28..508 

$.i.635,4;40 

CDBG Division of .Admn. 
Economic D' 
Principal 

S 25.000 
25.000 
25.000 
25.000 
25.000 

125.(X)0 
125.0fJ0 

3.637 
-

$..-378,637 

cvelr>[>ment 
Interest 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
. 
-
. 

$.._._ ...: 

Scries 
Principal 

$ 30.000 
35.000 
35,000 
35,000 

-
_ 

S.,,!.35.M 

of Indebtedness 
Series 

Principal 
S 285,000 

.300.000 
310.000 
320,000 
335,000 

1,085,000 
-
_ 

$.?^35,()()() 

2005 
1 

S 

^ 

Interest 
6,300 
4.594 
2,756 

919 
-
_ 

^Mm. 

2009 

$ 

1 
Sewer Revenue 

Series 
Principal 

S -S 
57,000 
58.000 
58,000 
59.000 

302.000 
316.000 
332.f)()0 
68.000 

Inieresi 
92.721 
81.840 
70.494 
,58.776 
46.593 
61.473 

-
_ 

•JUMl 

^ Bonds 
2010 

S. 

1 merest 
5,625 
5.497 
5,2.38 
4.977 
4.714 

19.539 
12.578 
5.297 

L53 

.63.618 

Series 
Principal 

S 855,000 
890.000 
925.000 

-
-
-

$.2.6.7.0,000 

State Fir. 
Retiremei 

Principal 
$ L30.714 

1.39.864 
149.6-55 
160,129 

-
-
-
-

$.,.580,362 

2003 
Interesr 

S 84,991 
51.923 
17,529 

-
-
-

LJ.J.f|.'443 

:fighicrs" 
it Svstem 

Interest 
$ 40.625 

31.475 
21.685 
11.209 

-
-
-
_ 

Ll!M,y34 
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Note 13 - I>ong-Tcrm Firemen's Disability Payments 

The City of West Monroe is .self-insured with respect to wtirkers' compensation claims u[) to 
$250,000 per occurrence. Con.sequently. the City is responsible for providing Louisiana Slate 
Workers Coinpensaiion benefits under the Heart and Lung .Act. Under this aci. special treatment 
has been accorded firemen who develop any disease or infirmity of the heart and lungs. Louisiana 
Revised Statute 33.2581 provides a presumption in favor of firemen that the di.sease is related to 
employment even if they are not on duty when stricken with the disea.se, if the disease manifests 
ii-self after the first five years of employmeni. At June 30, 2011. the Cily is responsible for 
payment of lifetime benefits to five firemen. The actuarial esiimaic of the liability is $668,154. 

The annual paymeni requirements outstanding at June .30, 2011 are as follows: 

2012 $ 48,221 
2013 48.221 
2014 48.221 
2015 48.221 
2016 48,221 

2016-2020 241.105 
2021-2025 161,285 
2026-2030 24.6.59 

TOTAL L J M J ^ A 

Note 14 - .Vlunieipal Facilities Revolving Loan Fund 

On November 1, 2009. the City entered into a commitment agreement with the Louisiana 
Department of Environmental Quality for two capitalization grants lolaling $6,000,000 to be used 
for the purpose of establishing a water pollution control revolving fund for providing assistance to 
upgrade the Ciiy's existing treaiment plant by installing additional components that would allow the 
pLint effltient to be used by Graphic Packaging as process water. 'These components are not re(|uired 
for the City to meet its pemiits. but arc needed solely to allow for the beneficial use of the plant 
eft'luent. The existing lagot»ns are retained to provide secondary treatment before entering the new-
units. Efflueni tVom the plant will ihen be pumped to Graphic Packaging through a pipeline lo be 
constructed for that purfKise. 

Sewer Revenue Bonds With 100*?̂  Principal Forgiveness ($4,750,000) 

Sewer revenue bonds were issued in the amount of $4,750,000 to help fund the above project. 
However, under the terms of ihe loan agvoement. the Ciiy's obligation io repay ihe principal of the 
bonds will be forgiven simullaneouslv' with the f)ayment by the DEQ of each installmcnl of the 
purchase price of the bonds. .As of June .30. 2011. the City received S4.450.082 which was 
recognized as bonds payable in the government wide financial statemenis. Upon torgivcness. this 
amount will bo recogni'/cd as other financing sources in the Citv "s Debt Capital Fund. 

Sewer Revenue Bonds ($L250,00O) 

Sewer revenue bonds were also issued in the ainouni of $1,250,000 to help fund the above project. 
This amount will be paid back over a twenty year amortization period ai .45% and is also recognized 
as bonds payable. See note 12 for the principal and interest requirements. .As of June 30, 2011, the 
Citv has only drawn $1.235/)90. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA'TEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .̂ 0̂, 2011 

Note 15 - Operating Lease 

The Cily is obligated under an operating lease for a building. This lease is a triple net lease for a 
period of ten years for $1,000 per month. .At the end of the initial ten year term, the lease shall 
automatically renew for an additional five years. 'The following is a schedule by years of future 
minimum rental payments: 

'ear Ended 
June 30, 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Amount 
12.000 
12.000 
12,000 
12.000 
12.000 

Note 16 - Northea-St Louisiana Arts Council 

The City provides office space and utilities at no charge to the N(.irtheast Louisiana .Arts Council. 
The amount of the services provided has not been determined. 

Note 17 - Litigation 

There are .several pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City .Attorney is unaware of 
any pending litigation from which he would reasonably expect the City to incur a liability in excess 
of its applicable deductible on any insurance policy, and is further unaware of any litigation where 
the Cily may nol be insured as to any claim where he would reasonably expect the Cily to incur a 
liability in excess of $50,000. 

Note 18 - Self-Insurance Program 

During 1998. the City began a self-insurance program for hospilalization and medical coverage for 
its active employees and retirees. The City limits its los.ses through the tise of reinsurers up to 
$60,000 per employee The City's aggregate annual loss limitation is based on a formula that 
considers, among other things, the total number of employees. ,Ai June -30. 2011, the City's annual 
cost, excluding reinsurance premiums, is limited lo a[)proximately $2,369,578 which was for active 
employees. .Appn)ximately 30 retirees receive benefits under this plan. These retirees reimbursed 
the City for $145,238 during the year ended June 30. 2011 for their cost of the health care benefits. 

Note 19- Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of the City may participate in a deferred C(.impcnsaii<u\ plan adopted under ihe 
provisions of huernai Revenue Code .Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to 
Service f(.̂ r State and Local Governments). The deferred compensation phjn is available lo all lull 
lime employees of the Cily. Under the plan, employees may elect lo defer a portion of their 
salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred 
compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination, retiremeni. 
death or unforeseeable emergency. 

Since the as.sets of the plans are held in a custodial account with a third party administrator, the 
assets and liabiliiies are nol presented in the Ciiy's financial siatemenis in accordance with GASB 
32. .Assets with a fair market value of $439,422 are held by Nationwide Reliremeni Solutions. 
Inc. and VALIC Financial .Advi.sors. 
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Receivables 

$1,782,868 
135.541 

-

619,841 
-
_ 
-

384.792 

ujmm^ 

Pavables 

$ 1.35..541 
1.450,000 

181.880 

87.760 
358.609 
707.252 

2.000 
-

U32MiZ 
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NOTES TO'THE I-LNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30. 2011 

Note 20 - Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Interfund balances at June .30, 2011. were :is follows: 
Interfund 

Fund 
M a j o r Founds: 

General Fund 
'86 Sales Tax 

Enterprise Fund 
Non-Major Funds; 

Special Revenue Funds 
Cafjiial Project Funds 
Debt Service Funds 
Fiduciary Funds 
Internal Service Fund 

T-QIAI., 

These balances resulted from the lime lag between the dales ihai interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, iransaciions are recorded in the accouniing system 
and payments between funds are made 

Note 21- Interfund Operat ing Transfers In and Out 

Inicrfund operating transfers in and out during ihe year ended June .30. 2011. were as follows: 

Operating Transfers 
Fttnd In Out 

Major Funds: 
General Fund $ 365,450 $ 446,256 
'^6 Sales Tax Capital - 1.537.000 

Enterprise Fund - 158.4-50 
Non-Major Funds: 

Special Revenue Funds 221.400 
Capital Project Funds 
Expendable Tnisi Funds 224.856 
Debt -Service Funds 1.330.000 : 

TOTAL $.ZJ4.LZQ(} $..2.14L7.06 

Tran.sfers are osvd to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them 
to the fund that staiule or budgei requires to expend them and (b) u.so unrestricted reventies 
collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with bud^etarv authorizations. 
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Note • ^ i On-Bchalf Pavments 

Certain City employees in the City Marshal's office, the West Monroe Police and Fire departments 
receive supplemental pay from the suite of Louisiana. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24. 
the City has recorded revenues and expenditures for these payments in the General Fund. Revenues 
under this arrangement totaled $62/.72.: 

Marshal's Office 
Police Department 
Jail 
Code Enforcement 
Fire De(iartrnent 

Total 

and the related expenditures are as follows: 

S 16.-384 
325.147 
52.152 

3.000 
231.040 

$.._627.72-3. 

Note 23- Minimum Lea-se Payments Receivable - Direct Financing Lease 

On September 29, 2006. the City purchased a building for $1,250,000 and renovated it for an 
additional $165,000 with the intent of leasing it as a commercial building with an option tt) 
purchase. The company that leased the building created 50 new jobs at the facility. In addition to 
this arrangement, ihe City was awarded a community development block grant for $500,000 
(SIO.OOO for each job created). This $-500,000 was added to the $915,000 in bond issuances that 
were secured during fiscal year 2006 to pay for the building for a total $1,415,000. 

'The following lists the components of the minimum lease payments to be received under the direct 
financing lease as of June .30, 2011: 

Total minimum lease payments t(.> be received 
Less: Amounts representing estimated executory costs 

(such as taxes, maintenance, and insurance), including 
profit thereon, included in total minimum lea.se payments 

Minimum lease payments receivable 
Estimated residual values of leased property (unguaranteed) 
Less: Unearned Income 
NET MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE -

DIRECT FINANCI.NG LEASE 

$ 1.024.612 

r024.612 

( 54.796) 

S 969,816 

Failure minimum lea.se paymenis are as frillows: 

Year Ended 
June 30, 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 

2027 
'Total 

Amount 
$ 147,000 

147,0(.10 
147.000 
147.000 
147.000 
1.5.5..595 
125.100 

8.917 
SA.D24MZ 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO THE FIN.ANCLAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 20.1 1 

Note 24 - Operating Lease - Golf Course Lease Agreement 

The Ciiy leases ihe municipal gf4f course lo a third party that is responsible for ils management and 
mainienance for a term of fifteen years beginning January 15. 2002 and ending January 15, 2017 in 
the amt.iuni of $875 per month. This third pany constrticted and improved, at his own expense, 
buildings, strucuircs. fences, cart paths, etc. lo improve die appearance and vwerall look of the 
course. In return, all green fees, cart fees, practice range fees, and charges for the sale of items 
throtigh the club house belong to the third party. Fulure minimum rental payments to be received 
are as follows: 

"if'ear Ended 
June 30. Amount 

S 10.500 
10.500 
10,-500 
10.500 
10.500 
6.125 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
Total S..5BM5. 

Note 25 - Fund Changes and Fund Balances 

Amounts for specific purposes by fund and fund balance cla.^sifications for the year ended June 30. 
2011 are as follows: 

Classification/Fund 
Nonspendable; 

General Fund 

Restricted; 
86 Sales Tax Capital 
2007 Debt Capital 
Emergency Shelter 
Renial Rehab 
Metro LCLE 
Section 8 Housing 
Amoricorps 

Committed: 
Genera) Fund 

Assigned: 
Street Maintenance 
Witness Foes 
Law Enf. Training Cir 
Office of Motor Veh 
Keep WM Beaiitiful 

L'nassigned: 
General Fund 
Misc Projects 
Nonmajor Debt Servic 
Nonmaj(tr Capital Proj 

Total Fund Balances 

Piirpose 

Inventory 
Minimum Lea.se Payment Receivable 

Capital Projects 
Capital Projects 
FEMA Emergency Shelter Recipients 
Public Housing 
LCLE Multi Jurisdictional 'Taskforce 
Public Housing 
Americorps Projects 

Fund Balance for Next Year's Operations 

Maintenance of Streets and Fioads 
Payments \o Officers to .Appear as Witnesses 
Training Facility for Future F'olice Officers 
DMV Operations 
Litter Prevention 

ecis 

.Amount 

$ 32.624 
1.024.612 

900.898 
] .884,002 

3.649 
6.904 
2.614 

419.263 
44.867 

2-53.571 

436.176 
7.355 

47.063 
76.907 
2,809 

4.631.471 
( 10.262) 
( 405.756) 
( 352,320) 

$.=.. 9.(^6,447 

Note 26 - Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 16, 2011, which i.s the day the financial 
statemenis were available to be issued, and it has been determined that no significant events have 
occurred for disclosure. 
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CITY OF WE.ST .MONROE. LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and Permits 
Cfiarges for Services 
Fities and Forfeitures 
Interest Earned 
Franchise Revenue 
Sale of .Assets 
Other 

Total Revenues 

E.vpenditures 

General Governmeni: 
Elected Council 
City Court 
Marshal 
Mayor's Office 
City Clerk's Office 
City Hall Maintenance 
General and .Achninistraiive 

Public Safety: 
Legal 
Fire 
Police 
Prison 
Police Shop 

Public Works: 
Garbage 
'T'rash 
Streets 
Cemetery 
Planning and 'Zoning 
Inspection 
City Maintenance Shop 

Budgeted 
Original 

$ 12,071,.500 
482,492 
881.100 

2,591,2(J0 
647.400 

8.000 
880.000 
256.000 
262-650 

18,080..342 

87.510 
396.662 
290,770 
177.680 

1.041.690 
428.490 

1.647.353 

430.770 
2,141,447 
5.(J05.793 

828.686 
52.923 

670.505 
-581.7.50 
788.160 
41.210 

111.985 
114.815 
319,9.50 

-Amounts 
Final 

$ 12.540.000 
454,000 
898,200 

2.548.000 
657,000 

51.000 
825.000 
262,000 
298-500 

18,533.700 

90.940 
396.662 
276.3-)8 
180.460 

1.100.000 
458.300 

1.562.000 

443.000 
2.204.300 
5.131,200 

793.300 
99.600 

689.100 
599,700 
889.300 

42.700 
115.400 
123.000 
335,0(K) 

.Actual 
.Amounts 

S 12,540.516 
4-54.001 
898,293 

2.548.189 
657.263 

51.079 
834.664 
261.684 
289.058 

18.534.747 

91.161 
404,502 
268.337 
179,595 

1.099.748 
458.260 

1.562.081 

443.140 
2.204,263 
5.131.253 

793.336 
99,655 

689.188 
599.6^6 
889.276 

42.694 
115.401 
123,076 
335,100 

Variance With 
Final Budgei 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$ 516 
1 

93 
189 
263 

79 
9.664 
(316) 

(9.442) 

L047 

(221) 
(7,840) 
8,001 

865 
252 

40 
(81) 

(140) 
37 

(53) 
(.36) 
(55) 

(88) 
54 
24 
6 

(1) 
(76) 

(100) 



CITY OF WES'T MONROE. LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30. 2011 

Culture and Recreation: 
Recreation and Parks 
Kiroli Park 
Lazarre Park 
Rcstoraticm Park 
Farmer's Market 

Ike Hamilton Expo Center 
Convention Center 
Cc>nimunity Development SL Center 
Tanner Building ili. Business Center 
Economic Develojiment 

Total E.x'pcnditurcs 

Exce-ss of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expenditures 

Other Financine Sources and (Use.s) 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total Other Financing Sources 
and Uses 

Net Chanae in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance at Be&innini> of Year 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF VEAR 

Budgeted 
Original 

$ 284,500 
387.074 

7.400 
2.900 

40.665 
940.-U6 
943.155 
458.795 
121.559 
67.572 

18.412,115 

(331.773) 

480.800 
(342,800) 

138.000 

(193.773) 

6.430.199 

$ 6.236.426 

Amounis 
Final 

$ 307.000 
401.300 

7.400 
2.900 

42,800 
976.100 

1.025,3-50 
454,700 
123,900 
69,800 

18,941.5.50 

(407,8-50) 

368,400 
(446,000) 

(77.600) 

(485,4.50) 

6.4-^0.199 

$ 5.944.749 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ -^07,217 
399.196 

9.850 
3.060 

42.837 
976.176 

1.025.362 
454.703 
123.931 
69.818 

18.941.862 

(407.1 LS) 

->65.4.50 
(446.2.56) 

(80.806) 

(487.921) 

6.4.30,199 

$ 5.942.278 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

$ (217) 
2.104 

(2.450) 
(160) 

(37) 
(76) 
(12) 

(3) 
(31) 
(18) 

(312) 

735 

(2.950) 
(2-56) 

(3.206) 

(2.471) 

_ 

$ (2.471) 

The accompanying notes are an iniegrai part of this financial sunemeni. 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
BUDGE1\ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE -

FOR 

Revenues 

Salei; Tax 

Iniergovernmental 

Charges for Services 

Other 

Interest Income 

T o t a l Revenues 

E.xpcnditurcs 

Computer Equipment and Software 

Street Projects 

Drainage Projects 

Furniture and Fi.xturos 

Vehicles 

Machinery and Equipment 

ConSLiltanis 

Engineering 

Construction/Buildings/Facitilies 

Water Projects 

Sewer Projects 

Treatment Plant Projects 

Land Purchases 

.Major Repairs 

Maintenance 

Tota l Expenditures 

Deficiencv of Revenues Over 

Expendi tures 

Other F inancinc Sources and (Uses) 

Transfers In 

Transfers Out 

Tota l Other F-'inancing Sources 

and Uses 

Set C h a n e e in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance at Be£!inninu of Year 

FUND BALANCE AT END O F YEAR 

'86 SALES TAX / 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .̂ 0̂, 2011 

Bude.etei 

Original 

$ 4.600,000 

300.000 
-

-

-

4,900.000 

300,000 

50.000 

75.000 

10.000 

500,000 

300.000 

30.000 

250.000 
-

125.(300 

300.000 

150,000 

-

150.000 

450.000 

2,690,000 

2.210,0(J0 

-

(1.545.000) 

(1.545.000) 

665.000 

721.595 

$ 1.3S6..595 

d .Amounts 

Final 

$ 4.981.000 

3.663.000 

150.000 

10.000 

1.O50 

8.805,650 

631.500 

1,976,000 

305.200 

11.200 

407,000 

554.000 

238,000 

120,250 

1.407.000 

171.900 

23.100 

349,900 

3.600 

411.600 

478.000 

7.088,250 

1,717,400 

-

(1,537,000) 

(1.537.000) 

180.400 

721.595 

$ 901.995 

•-5% CAPITAL FUND 

Actual 

Amounts 

$ 4.981,018 

3.662.153 

152,236 

9,-531 

1.659 

8,806,-597 

631.065 

1.976,092 

305.194 

11,115 

407.794 

-5-54.278 

238.629 

119.442 

1.406.418 

171.949 

23.118 

349.848 

3.600 

414.581 

477.171 

7.090.294 

1.716.303 

-

(1.537.000) 

(L537.000) 

179,303 

72L595 

$ 900,898 

V; 

F 

(I, 

$ 

$ 

iriance With 

inal Budgei 

Favorable 

Infavorable) 

18 

(847) 

2.236 

(469) 

9 

947 

435 

(92) 

6 

85 

(794) 

(278) 

(629) 

808 

582 

(49) 

(18) 

52 

-

(2.981) 

829 

(2.044) 

(1.097) 

-

-

-

(i.(J97) 

. 

(L097) 

The accompanying noies are an integral part of ihis financial staiemeni. 
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CITY OF W'EST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO BUDGF/TARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

I'OR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statemenis: 

1. In May of each year, the Mayor submits to the Board of .Aldermen an operating and capital 
budgei for the succeeding year. 

2. A public hearing is scheduled by the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen after allowing for at 
least ten days notice to the public at the time the budger is initially submitted to the Board of 
Aldermen. 

3. Final adoption of the budgei by the Board of .Aldermen is on the second Tui:'sday in June. 

4. The Mayor may authori::e transfers of budgetary amounts within departments. However, any 
revision requiring aiieration of levels of expenditures or transfers between departments must 
be approved by the Board of Akiermen. 

5. Operating appropriations and nonmajor capital approfuiaOons. to rhe extent not expended, 
lapse at year-end. Major capital appropriati(.)ns continue in force until the project is 
completed. 

.All legally adopted budgets of the City are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United Stales of .America (GAAP). Budgets are ado|.>ted for 
the General Fund. Special Revenue Funds. Debt Service Funds. Capital Project Funds, and 
E.vpendable Trust Funds. 

Budget comparison schetlules included in the accompanying financial statemenis include the 
original adopted budgets and all subsequent adopted amendments. 
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT SUPPLEMENTAL 
INFORMATION SCHEDULES 



ASSETS 

CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING B.ALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30. 2011 

Street 

.Vlaintcnance 

Fund 

West 
Ouachita 

Senior Center 

Fund 

Emergenc) 

Shelter 

Program 

Fund 

Officer 

Witness 
Court 

Fund 

Cash in Bank 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Governments 

Due FYom Other Funds 4-36,176 

770 

10.897 

3.649 
531 

6,824 

T O T A L ASSE r S $ 436.176 S 11.66: ;,649 1-55 

UABILTIIFS 

.Accounts Payable 

Due T o Other Funds 

Tota l Liabilities 

11.66: 

11.667 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 436.176 .649 7,355 

TOTAL LLABlLrriES AND 
FOND BALANCES 4-^6.176 n.667 3.649 $ .3-')-̂  



Rental 
fiehabiliiation 

Fund 

Metro LCLE 
Gram 

Fund 

Juvenile 

Justice 
Gram 
Fund 

North Delta 
Law 

Enforcement 
Training Center 

Fund 

Office of 
Motor 

Vehicles 

6.904 

12.711 - - - C 
21.688 -_ 47.202 76.963 

0 
6.904 $ 34,399 $ - $ 47.202 $ 76.96 ):> 

$ 31.785 S - S 139 $ 56 1 

31.785 - 139 .So N 

U 

6.904 2.614 ^ 47.063 76.907 E 

D 
$ 6,904 $ 34.399 $ - $ 47.202 $ 76.963 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE .'^0,2011 

ASSETS 

Cash in Bank 
.Accounts Receivable 
Due From Other Governments 
Due From Other Funds 

TOTAL ASSFTS 

s 

$ 

Section 8 
Housing 

Fund 

458.117 
-

5,005 
-

46.3.122 

21st Centurv 
Department 

of Education 
Grant 

$ 
-
-
-

S 

.A 

$ 

$ 

mericorjis 
Grant 
Fund 

-

-
42.309 

2.558 

44.867 

Southern 
Fried 

Festival 
Fund 

$ 
-
-
-

$ 

LLABILHTES 

Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 
43,859 
43,8-59 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 419.26: 44,867 

TOTAL LLABfLITlES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 463,122 44-867 



Domestic Miscellaneous Keep Total 
Violence Projects and West Monroe Nonmajor 
Response Grant Beautiful Special Revenue 

Teain Funds Gram Program Funds 

S ' $ 465,021 
770 

71.453 
21.972 2,809 619.841 

21.972 $ 2,809 $ 1.157.085 

$ - $ - $ 31.980 
32.234 - 87.760 

32.2.̂ >4 - 119.740 

(10.262) 2.809 1.037,-545 

$ 21,972 $ 2,809 $ 1.157,085 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR Sf^ECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30. 2011 

Revenues 
Ta.xes 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Street 
Maintenance 

Fund 

224.730 

West 
Ouachita 

Senior Comer 
Fund 

$ 224.730 $ 

193.114 

171.905 
365.019 

Emergency 
Shelter 

Program 
Fund 

S 
5,353 

5.353 

Officer 
Witness 
Court 
Fund 

:55.912 
55,912 

Expenditures 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Culture and Recreaiit)n 
Capital Expenditures &. 

Major Repairs 
Total Expenditures 

186.524 

186.524 

543.611 

543.611 

13,49: 

13.497 

67,600 

67.600 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures -^8.206 (178,592) (8,144) (11,688) 

Other Financing Sources 
Operating Transfers - hi (Out) 

Total Other Financing 
Sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

38.206 

397.970 

S 4-36.176 $ 

178.592 

178,.S92 

s 

-

(8.144) 

11.793 

3,649 S 

-

(11.688) 

19.043 

7.-355 



Rental 

Rchabiliiaiton 

Fund 

$ 

Metro LCLE 
Grant 

Fund 

$ 
127,113 

-

127,113 

127,113 
-

Juvenile 

Justice 
Grant 

Fund 

$ 

-

_ 

-

-
_ 

North Delta 
I.-aw 

Enforcement 

Training Center 

Fund 

s 
-

43,1.53 
43.153 

62.293 
-

S 

Office of 
Motor 

Vehicles 

69,636 

_ 

69.636 

67,025 
-

C 

0 

6,904 2.614 

6,904 $ 2.614 

127.113 - 62.293 67,025 

N 

J 

I 

(19.140) 2.611 N 

$ 

-

(19.140) 

66.203 

47.063 $ 

-

2,611 

74.296 

76.907 

D 
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CITY OF WE.ST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENLVE FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. E.XPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Revenues 
Ta.xes 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 
Other 

Total Revenues 

E.vpendtture.s 
Public Safetv 
Ptiblic Works 
Health and Welfare 
Culture and Recreation 
Capital E.xpcndiiures Sc 

Major Repairs 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other F^inancing Sources (U.ses) 
Operaiing 'Transfers - In (Out) 

Total Other Finaneinji; 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fuiul Balance 

Fund Balances - Be^innin^ 

FUND BALANCES - ENDLNG 

Section 8 
Housing 

Fund 

S 
1.704,987 

867 
43 

L705.897 

• • 

-
1.61.5,332 

-

-
L6L5,.J32 

90.565 

-

-

90.565 

.^28.698 

$ 419.263 

21st Century 
Department 

of Education 
Grant 

S 
54,787 

-
-

54.787 

-
-
-

55.202 

-
55,202 

(415) 

-

(4151 

415 

$ 

.Americorps 
Grant 
Fund 

$ 
2(J0.642 

-
. 

200.642 

-
-
-

203,653 

-
203,653 

(3.011) 

-

-

(3.0111 

47.S78 

S 44.867 

Southern 
Fried 

Festival 
Fund 

$ 
-
-

79.157 
79 157 

-
-
-

121.965 

-
121.965 

(42.808) 

42,808 

42.808 

-

S 



Domestic Miscellaneous Keep Total 
Violence Projects and Wesl Monroe Nonmajor 
Respon.so Grant Beautiful Sjiecial Revenue 

Team Funds Grant Program Funds 

$ - S 224,730 

5.201 2.360.833 
867 

3.245 - 353,415 
3.245 5.201 2.9.>9.845 

324.031 
186.-524 

2.172.440 
16.755 2,084 -399.659 

16.755 2.084 3.082.6-54 

(13,510) 3.117 (142,809) 

221.400 

221.400 

(13,510) 3,117 78..591 

3.248 (308) 958.754 

10.262) $ 2.809 $ 1.037,->45 



CTTY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

W-EST OUACHITA SENIOR CENTER 
BALANCE SHEETS 

A.ssets 

iO, 

2011 2010 

Due From Other Governments: 
Loui-siana Office of Elderly Afdurs 
L)cparrmeni of Transportation 

770 .f; 22,053 
10,897 10.842 

Total Assets 

Liabiiitie.s and Fund Balance 

11,66 $ 32.895 

Liabnities 
.Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 
11.66 
11,667 

1.125 
31,770 
32,895 

Fund Bidancc 
Unreserved 

T<ttal Liabilities and Fund Balance 11.66: 32.895 
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CITY OF WES'T MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

WEST OUACHITA SENIOR CENTER 
SCHEDL'LES OF REVENUES. EXPENDITL'RES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenues 
IDopartment of 'Transportation 
Ouachita Council on .Aging 

Senior Center Funds 
Supplemental Senior Ci-iHcr Funds 

Louisiana Office of Elderly .Affairs 
l/niied Way 
Transportation Fees 
Miscellaneous Revenues (Ceramics. Greenhou-se, elc. 

Total Revenues 

For ihe Years Ended 
June 30. 

2011 

65,665 

2010 

63.050 

62.410 

6.621 
50,000 

94.4'>3 
8.418 

77,412 

62,412 

6.624 

65,456 
83.855 

6.121 
65.464 

-365.019 352,982 

E.vpcndttures 
Salaries and Related Expenditures 
Professional Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Communications 
Postage 
Newsteiter 
.Advertising 
'Travel 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Fuel 
Mi.sccllaneous 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 

Cily of W"cst Monroe SupfKirt 

Net Change in F'und Balance 

Fund Balance • Beginning 

FUND BALANCE-ENDING 

.381.1-38 .361.845 
4,385 

13,4.32 
2,233 
2.676 

14.-558 
2,463 

13,393 
31,367 
23,877 
40.167 
13.922 

543.611 

(178..592) 

t'i.466 
8.832 
2.392 
2,140 
8.151 
2.330 
5.434 

33.486 
22.265 
32.920 
21.362 

507.623 

(LS4.641) 

178.592 154.641 



C\T\ OF WES'T MONROE. LOlilSIANA 
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING BAL.ANCE SHEET 
JUNE .^0.2011 

ASSETS 

Firemen's 2007 
Pension Merger Debt Service 

Funii Fund 

Cash in Bank 
.Accounts Receivable - Sales Tax 
Due F'rom Other Funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABlLrP/ES 

$ 

S 

141,15V 
14.300 

155.459 

$ 

$ 

120,377 
29.000 

149.377 

2003 
Debt Service 

Fund 

Total 
N<jnmaj<.)r 

Debi Service 

Funds 

168.000 
$ 261.536 

211,300 

$ 472,836 

Payable to State Retiremeni 
Due 'To Other f'unds 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

$ 171.-V40 

171,-^40 

$ - $ 171.340 
707.252 707.252 

707.252 878.592 

Reserved For Debt Service 

TO TAL LIABILITIES AND 
FLND BALANCES 

(15.881 149.-377 (539.252) (405.75(S) 

155.4.59 $ 149,377 $ 168,000 $ 472,836 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN 1-UND BALANCES 

FOR 'THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011 

Revenues 
'Ta.xes 
Sales of Asseis 

Total Revenues 

Firemen's 2007 
Pension Merger Debt Service 

Fund Fund 

171.600 348.000 

2003 
ebt Service 

Fund 

Total 
Nonniajor 

Debt Service 
Funds 

$ 171,600 $ 348.000 $ S 519.600 

519.600 

Expenditures 
Principal Retirement 
Other Debt Service Costs 
Interest 

Total E.xpcnditurcs 

E.xcc.ss ((Deficiency) of Revtmucs 
Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources 

Operating Transfers - In 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance - Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - ENDLNG 

122.163 

49.1 

171..340 

260 

155.000 
651 

1 75.438 
331.089 

16.911 

1.220.020 
-

254,784 
1.474.804 

(K474,804) 

1,330.000 

1.497.183 
651 

479.399 
1,977,2.33 

(1.457,633) 

1.330.000 

260 16.911 

(16.141) 132.466 

(144.804) (127.633) 

(:S94.448) (278,12:5) 

(15.881) $ 149.377 $ (-5:̂ 9.252) $ (405.756) 
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CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NONM.AJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30,2011 

ASSETS 

1-20 Ramp 
Project 

CDBG ' 
Street 
Paving 
Project 

Detention 
Basin Grant 

Project 

Cash in Bank 

Due From Other Governments 
Due F>om Other Funds 

1 OTAL ASSETS 

6.278 

6.278 $ 

LIABILITIES 

.Accounts Payable 
Due 'To Other Funds 

Total Liabilititcs 
158,609 

358.609 

FUND BAL.ANCES (DEFICITS) 

Unreserved: 
Designated for Fulure 

Expenditures 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

6.278 (3.58.609) 

$ 6.278 $ 



CDBG - CDBG - Total 
Send 2008 LCDBG Nonmajor 

Technologies Sewer Capital Project 
Project Project Funds 

4 $ 6.289 

S 

6,289 

358.609 

358.609 

352,320) 

6.289 
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CITY OF WEŜ T MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NONM.AJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JU.NE .50. 2011 

Revenues 
Intergovernmeniai 
Sale of Assets 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Capital Projects 

Excess (Deficiencv) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating Transfers - In 
Operating Transfers - Out 

Total Other Financing Sources 
(Uses) 

Net Change in Funtl Balance 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

FUND BALANCES - ENDINti 

1-20 Ramp 
Projeci 

CDBG-
Street 

Paving 
Project 

Detention 

Basin Grant 

Project 

6.278 

8.710 

(8.710) 

(8.710) 

(349,899) 

$ 6.278 S (358.609) 



CDBG - CDBG - Total 
Send 2008 LCDBG Nonmajor 

Technologies Sewer Capital Project 
Project Project Funds 

$ 

8.710 

(8.710) 

(8.710) 

(343.610) 

$ (352.-320) 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INEORM.^TION 



CTTY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
ALL FUNDS 

SCHEDULT-: OF ASSESSED VALUATION AND AD VALOREM 
PROf!ERTVTAX I..EVY FOR 2010 

Oru^inal Asses.sed .Valuati(ui 

TjixF^ t̂̂ ^ Per Thousand Dollars (Mills) 

Gros-'r̂  T;u Le\y 

Less: .Adjustmenls 

Adju^fctl Gross Tax Levy 

% 137.169.256 

8.62 

$ LI82,:^99 

(10.663) 

$ 1,171.7-^6 

"Tax Collected 
20 10 Assessments $ 1-171,736 

Alloc at ion_ oLJiix Ct )llceted 

General Fund 
Street Maintenance 

2010 Tax 
Rale Mills 

6.97 $ 947.006 
1.65 224.730 

Total 8.62 S 1.171.736 



CITY OF WES'T MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND E.XPENDITURES - CONVENTION CEN'TER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30. 2011 

Revenues 

Ccsi of Operations 
Operating E.xpenditures 
Personnel 

Total 

Gros.'̂  Profit 

Administriitive Expenditures 
Director's Salary 
Operations Salaries 
Employee Benefiis 
Vehicle Maintenance 
Mf.ilcrials. Repairs*.^ Supplies 
Operating Supplies 
Travel. Car & Meetings 
Cell Phones and Pagers 
Fuel 
Advertising 
Office Supplies 
Utilities 

Total .Administrative 
E.xpenditures 

Deficiencv of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

$ 

$ 

Events 
5.070 

3,699 
4.-344 
8.043 

(2.97-3) 

Concession 
% 3.863 

s 

-
-
-

3.863 

$ 

$ 

Catering 
742.753 

366,170 
430,041 
796,211 

(53A5S) 

'Total 
S 751.686 

369,869 
4-34..385 
804.254 

{52,56S) 

56.637 
53,242 
35.192 

1,646 
4.:545 

39.926 
1,843 
1,080 

11,026 
763 

4.371 
11,037 

221.108 

S (273,676) 



Budget 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

k>.095 $ (108,663) 

54,255 
51,500 

34,540 
1.300 
5.200 

37.000 

L700 

1.080 
12.000 

850 
5.500 

13.125 

(2.:̂ 82) 

(1,742) 
(652) 
(346) 

855 
(2.926) 

(143) 

974 
87 

1,129 

2.088 

218.050 (3.05S) 

(161.955) (111.721) 
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CITY OF WEST .MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - IKE HAMILTON EXPO CENTER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE-SO. 2011 

Revenues 

Cost of Operations 
Operating E.xpenditures 
Per-sonnel 

Total 

Gross Profit 

Administrative E.xpenditures 
Director'.s Salary 
Operations Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Vt^hicle Maintenance 
Materials. Repairs &. Supplies 
Gas and Oil 
Office 
Cell Phones and Pagers 
Other Miscellaneous Purchases 
Utilities 

Total .Administrative 
E.xpenditures 

Deficiencv of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

$ 

S 

Equine 
Events 

175,415 

68.731 
56,505 

125.2-36 

50.179 

Concession 
$ 18,465 

$ 

7.235 
5,948 

13.183 

5.282 

Sit 

$ 

S 

til Rentals (ic 
Shavings 

267.7:>9 

104,906 
86,244 

191.150 

76.589 

$ 

$ 

Total 
461.619 

180.872 
148.697 
-329.569 

132.050 

81.740 
1.33.064 
62.072 
5,020 

37,195 
2,195 

40 
1.440 
1.200 

322.641 

646.607 

(514.557) 



Budget 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

103,240 28.810 

78.785 

125,200 

.59.761 
5.200 

34.200 
3.500 

I.OOO 
1.440 

1,500 

311.-500 

622.086 

(2.95.5) 

(7.864) 

(2,311) 

180 
(2.995) 

\,305 
960 
-
300 

(11.141) 

(24,521) 

(518.846) $ 4,289 
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j CriY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
f SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO COUNCIL ME.MBERS 

FOR THEYF-AR ENDEDJUNE .30, 2011 

James Bennett $ 10.800 
James Brian 10.800 
Alice Pearson 10,800 
FredRagland 10.800 
Sam Yeager 10,800 

54.000 
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REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
AND CIRCULAR A-13.^ 



CAMERON, LEINI^S & I-LVRTT 
(A T"'rtjri-ssioiiul Acrf)iiiiiiiiii Coi[K)raU(m) 

Certified Public Accountants 

W'csx Munrac. l.A 7I2'̂ .l-:.l7^1 ^^'^^^ MoiKuc, Louis iana / I 2 0 1 ,.,,, ,.,,jjj ;:2:-5!2f 

REPORT ON INTERNAL C O N T R O L OVER FINA.NCLAL REPORTING 

AND ON CO.VIPITANCE AND O FHER M A F P E R S BASED ON AN AUDIT O F 
FINANCLAL STATEMENTS P E R F O R M E D LN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT A VDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Mayor and Boartl of .Aldermen of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Wc have audited the primary government financial siatcmenl.s of the governmental activiiies. Ihe 
business-type activiiies. each major fund, and the aggregate remaimng fund informaiion of the City of 
We.si Monroe. Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30. 2011. which collectively 
comprise ihe City's basic primary govcrnmeni financial statements and have issued our reporl thereon 
dated November 16. 2011. The report on the Ciiy's legally separate component units was qualified due 
to its omi.ssion from the Ciiy's financial statements. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of .America and the standards applicable to 
financial audiis coniained in Government .-Auditing Standards, issued b\ the Compirollcr General of the 
United States. 

Internal Coi\tr«l Over Financial Rcportinj;; 

In planning and perforfuing our audit, wc considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
tile basic prirTKiry financial statemenis, but not for the pur[)osc of expressing an opinion on the 
effectivene.ss of the .City's iniernal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opituuu on the effectiveness of the Ciiy's internal control over financial repining. 

A deficiency in iniernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does noi allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
doled and correct missiaicment.s on a timely basis. .A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control .such that there is i\ reasonable possibiliiy that a material 
rnisslalemenl of die entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or delected and corrected on a 
timely basis. 

Our corLsideralion of internal control over financial reporiing was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of ihis section and wns not designed to identilA all deficiencies in internal control 
over financiiil reporiing thai might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material vseaknesses. We 
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control t.iver financial reporiing thai wo consider to be 
material weaknes.scs. as defined above. However we identified certain deficiencies in iniernal control 
over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings arul questioned costs that 
we consider to be .significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting as items 11-1 
through 11-5. .A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet im[)oriant enough to merit attoniion by tho.se 
charged with governance. 

f)6 
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Honorable Mayor and Board of .Aldertnen of 
West Monroe. Louisiana 

Pa.ce 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

-As pan of obtaining reasonable a.ssurance about whether the City's financial statements are fvef of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisitjns of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the dciermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with tlmse provisions was nol an objective of our audii. and accordingly, wc do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that 
is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 11-6. 

The Ciiy's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's responses and. accordingly, we 
express nr̂  opinion on them. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Legislative .Auditor, 
the City of West Monroe. Louisiana and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parlies. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513. this 
report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

(lj3...-yUu7^^ WLz^. t U x ^ UkPA-CL) 

West Monroe, Louisiana 
November 16. 2011 
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.Mi'LtiliajiSAlSittss: 
P.O. nas? .4r i 
\Vp.st Monri>e, lAlM^-X-l-M-', 

C/VMERON, lilNES & ITYR'IT 
(.•\ I'rol'fssiouul AecomiUtig CuriHiriiUoii) 

Certifiicd Public Accountants 
JOIKcgcney Place 

West Moiiroc, Ltmisiuiiu 71291 I'iuini: (-"'18)-123-1717 
J-:i.\ ( i l S ) .122-5121 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD ILWE A DIRECT 
AND -MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH M.AJOR PROCiRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCUL.AR A-133 

Honorable Mayor and Board of AldernKMi of 
West Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance 

Wc have audited the compliance of the City of West Monroe. Louisiana (the City), with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U. 5. Office of Manui^cment and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplemem ihat are applicable to each i>f ils major federal prctgrams for ihe year ended 
June 30. 2011. The Ciiy's major federal programs arc identified in (he Summary of Auditor's Results 
section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs 
is the responsibility of die Ciiy's managemenl. Our responsibililv is lo express an opinion on the Ciiy's 
compliance ba.sed on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance wiih auditing standards generally accepied in 
t:hc United States of America: the standards ap[)licabie lo financial audiis coniained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular .A-133. 
Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Tln.ise standards and OMB 
Circular A-133 require that wc plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about wheiber 
noncompliance with the lypes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audil includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Ciiy's compliance with tliose requiremenls and performing such other procedures as 
we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audii provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. Our audii does not provide a legal determination of the Ciiy's coinpliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opini(jn. the City complied, in all maferial respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
arc applicable to each of iis major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

'The management of ihe C'iiy is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with ihe requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Ciiy's internal control over 
compliance with the requirements that could have a material eft'cci on a major federal program in order 
10 determine our auditing procedures lor the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and lo lesl 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular .A-l 33. but not for the 
purpo-se of expressing an {.)pinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance 
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Honorable Ma\(ir and Fioard of .Aldermen of 
W'est Monroe, Louisiana 

Pace 2 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow matiagomcnt or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a tyf)e of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. .A material weakness in interna! control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in interna! control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected by the entity's internal control. 

Our consideration of the iniernal control over compliance was for the limited purpo-sc described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
us defined above. 

This reporl is intended solely for the informaiion and use of management, the City of Wesi Monroe. 
Louisiana, the Louisiana Legislative Auditc>r. fedcrjil awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be u.sed hy anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513. this report is distributed by the Legislative .Auditor as a public docuirient. 

<̂ i*-î *rrM. d ^ ^ 1 A A ^ C A m c ^ 

West Monroe. Louisiana 
November 16. 201] 
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9 CITY OF WES'T .MONROE. LOUISIANA 
I SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND (2.1 JESTIONED COSTS 
I FOR THE YEAR ENDEf) JUNE 30. 2011 

I 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1, The auditors' report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic primary goxcrnmeni financial 
statemenis of the Citv of West Monroe. Louisiana. 

2. Si.x significant deficiencies di.sclf)sed during the audit tjf the financial statements are reported in 
the Report On Compliance .And On Iniernal Control Over Financial Reporting Based On An 
Audil Of Financial Statements Performed In .Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
and the Report On Compliance With Requirements .Applicable To Each Major Program .And 
Iniernal Control Over Compliance In Acc(.)rdance WMth OMB Circular A-133. None of the 
siiinificant deficiencies are deemed to be material weaknesses. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material lo the finwiKiat statements of the City of West Monroe. 
Lo\Hsi;ma. which would be retiuired to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, were disclosed durini: the audii. 

4. No significant deficiencies were disclosed during the audil of the major federal award programs 
arc reported in the Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major 
Program Ami hitornal Control Over Compliance In .Accordance With OMB Circular A-133. 

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of West 
Monroe, Louisiana exprcs.ses an unqualified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. Audit fini.Unii,s that are required to be reported in accordance with Sections 510(a) of O.MB 
Circular A-133 are reported in this -schedule. 

7. The progryms lesled as major f)rografns included tfie Department of Housing and Urban 
DcvclopmcfH Voucher Program. CFD.A No. 14.871. the Environmental Protection Agency, 
CFD.A No. 66.458 and the f>eparirnent of'Transponation. CFD.A No. 20.205. 

8. The threshold for distinguishing bet\\eeri T>pes .A and B programs was $300,000. 

9. The Citv of West Monroe. Louisiana docs not uualif\ lo be a low-risk auditee. 
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I CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
I SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
I FOR THE YEAR ENDED Jf/NE .>(), 2011 (continued) 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

There were no findings relaiing lo this category. 

FLNDINGS - FINANCIAL ST.ATE.MENT AUDIT 

1 1-1 Late Filinii of Pavroll Tax Reports 

Condition: 
During the audit of the City of West Monroe's payroll, we noiod that the first and second 
quarter 941 payroll tax forms were not filled out and filed until .August 2011. 

Criteria; 
Federal law requires quarterly 941 "s to be filed by the end of the next month following end of 
the quarter. 

Effect: 
By not filling out and filing payroll tax forms timely could resuh in penalties and interest 
being charged to the City by the taxing authorities. 

Recommendation: 
The City should fill out and file all payroll ta,x reports by the due date. 

Rcŷ yionso: 
The City's payroll department will be more diligent in its efforts for filing all payroll ta.x 
reports timely. 

11-2 PavroU Forms Filled Out Incorrectly 

Condition: 
During the audit of the City of West Monroe's payroll, we also nofed that the 941 payroll ta.x 
forms were filled out incorrectly by including the prcta.x amounts in loial wages, such as 
pension contributions and health insurance pavments. The amount withheld and reported 
from tmpioyees was correct, but the amount paitl in for the employer portion for social 
security and medicare ta.x was underreported by a small amount 

Criterjii: 
'The 94\ total wages should be reporieti nei of amounts withheld for pension and health 
insurance cfjnlribuiions. 

Eifccv. 
By nol (UUne out the piiyroW uix forms correcily, this could result in incorrect filings and 
f)aynients reported to the ta.xing authorities. 



I CITY OF W1.-.ST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
I SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
I FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 icominued) 

t FlNDINCiS - FIN.ANCIAL SI ATEMENT AUDIT (continued) 

f J ' • - Pavroll Forms Filled Out Incorrectly (continued) 

t Recommendation: 
The City's payroll departmeni should amend the 2010 and 2011 quarterly 941 payroll ta.x 
forms. 

Response: 
The Chy's payroll department has amended the 941 payroll tax forms for a/I four quarters of 
2010 and the first two quarters of 2011. The payroll depanmem has adjusted the informaiion 
fctrm which the 941 payroll tax form infornuuion is taken from in order to fill out the forms 
correcily going forward. 

I 1-3 Lack of Inventory Control Over F ôod at Convention Center 

Cj^Klitjon: 
During the audit of the Ciiy's conveniion center operations, it was noted through observations 
and interviews with the director that no inventory is mainiained on food that is stored on site 
for u[)comiiig events. Substantial amounts of food items are kept in free/crs and refrigerators 
al the convention center bui no records are kept to determine what is there, the cost of those 
items or when they were received. 

Criteria: 
1 he Ciiy's convention center management should have an i/iventory system in place so that at 
any time they know whal is in storage and can belter track ihe food costs that are associated 
with iheevenf.y that are booked. 

Elfect: 
By not having a system in place lo track inventory, maniigemeni al the convention center 
can't know what is in storage or rhe cfjsi of tiiese items. 

Recommendation: 
Management at the convention center should implement a system of inventory control over 
the (\K>d ibai is ordered and maintained at the convention center to safeguard controls and to 
track f>f costs of food per event. 

Response: 
'The City is implementing a food inventorv and purchasing system al the Conventt(Mi Center 
at the time of ihe audit. 



i 
I CTTY OT' WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
i SCHEDIJ 'LE O F FINDINGS AND C)1 :EST10NED C0.S'TS % FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 (coniinued) 

I 11-4 Theft of Deposits at Kiroli Park 
i 

1 C.ondUi(.m: 
; The Ciiy determined that two employees at ihe City's Kiroli Park were cashing chocks that 
\ were written for lodge rental and other deposits, antl issuing fake receipts for these deposits. 

This had been ongoing for period of lime longer than the fiscal year ending June .30, 2011. 

Criieria; 
The Ciiy's police department determined dcf^xsjis in excess of $59.(XK) were taken by cashing 
checks issued by customers for deposits to rent the lodge or other picnic areas around ihe 
park. The ihefts were discovered after a customer asked for his deposit back and the ivvo 
efn[>!oyet:.'s could noi pay ii with funds maintained at the park. 

ReC(.)niniendaiion: 
The Cily should more closely monitor the safekeeping of the deposits and keep them in a 
location, such as Cily Hall, \vhere it would not be easy tor non approved persons to access 
them. 

Respons.e: 
We have instiuiicd atiditional controls in order to lessen the likelihood of iliis happening in 
the fulure. 
• New cash registers have been ordered and will be installed at Kiroli and at other locations 

within the City ihat receive small amounts of money from the public, such as event 
concessions and the front desk yt the Recrcatit-m Center. 

• 'The ability to issue receipts from the City's accouniing software is being made available 
at the same locations for accepting larger payments for rent of facilities, etc. 

• At Kiroli Park, ail payments for rental of facilities will be made at City Hall. 'The rental 
contract will be completed at Kiroli Park and \\\tiv\ the customer will bring the signed 
contraci to Ciiy Hall to pay. 

• The customer will be issued a receipt from Ciiy Hall and will take the receipt back to the 
park when ready for their event. 

• A signed and dated placard will be completed and displayed on the facility being rented 
on the day of and for the duration of Ihc event. 

Along with the contr()ls already in place, ihese additional controls should limit the [lossibilily 
of this happening in the tuturc. 

11-5 Cash Contrttls at Locations Outside of Citv Hall 

Contlilion: 
During ihe audit, it was noted that cash is received from customers in locations other that City 
Hall such as the recreation center, conveniion center. Kiroli Park and the Ike Hamilton Horse 
Pavilion. Although it is not feasible for all funds to be collected at City Hall, a good system 
of controls should be in place at these remote locations to ensure that all funds collected arc 
deposited in the city\s bank accounts. 
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CITY OF W'EST MONROE. T.OUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FLNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 (coniinued) 

1L5 Ca.sh Controls at Locations OutsirJc of Citv Hall (continued) 

Criteria: 
Controls over cash collected should be in place to en.sure that all cash collected i.s deposited. 

Effect: 
Because of the small ann>unis of fees collected at the park, recreation center and concessions 
at the conveniion center and the horse pavilion, it allows for errors or misappropriation of this 
cash. 

Recommendation: 
The Ciiy's management should review its controls that are in place for cash collection.? at its 
sites outside of ciiy hall. 

Response: 
Wc have instituted additional controls over cash transactions at remote site. 
• New cash registers have been ordered and will be installed at Kiroli and at other remote 

.•̂ iies around ihe city that take cash from customers. 
• 'The ability to issue receipts from fhe City's accounting software is being made available 

at the same locations accepting larger payments for rent of facilities or other payments. 

11-6 lncomi>letc Budgets 

Condition: 
During the 2010 Louisiana Legislative regular session, requirements were added to the state 
budget law effective January 1. 2011. thai required a budgei message and a side-by-side 
detailed comparison of infornuuion for the current year, ycar-to-date actual receipts and 
revenues received and estimates of all receipts and revenues to be received the remainder of 
the year: estimated and actual revenues itemized by source: year-to-date actual expenditures 
and estimates of all o.xfjenditures to bo made the remainder of the year itemized by agency, 
department, funciion. and character: and the percentage change for each item of information. 
These items were not in the 2011-2012 proposed budget as required. 

Effect: 
By not having these items in the proposed budget, the City is in violation of LA R.S. 39:1305 
of the state budget law. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend ihai when the City adopts its next year's budget that these items akso be 
included wiih the budgei report. 

Response: 
'The Cily will include these items in the 2011-2012 amended budgets and in next year's 
adopted budgets. 



CITY OE WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDL'LE OF EXPENDITURES OF PEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE .30. 2011 

Federal Grants/Pass Thiovigh 
Granlor/Prouram Title 

*-
Department of Housing & Urban Development 

Public and Indian Housing 
HAP- Vouchers 

CFDA 
.Number 

14.871 

.Agency or PLISS -

Through Number 

LA186VO 

Expenditures 

* S 1.490,861 

Department of Homeland Security 

EF&S .National Board Program 

Homeland Securiiy Grcml 

Hazard Miiigaiion (Baffles) 

.As.sisiance to Firefitihters 

97.024 

97.067 

91.039 

97.044 

36600-002 

2008-GE-T8-()0l3 

None 

EMW-2OI0-FO-O2003 

5.353 

9,332 

294.572 

45.308 

Environmental Protection Agency 
Office of Water 

ARRA - Capita! Grant for CWSRF 
ARRA - Capital Grant for CWSRF 

Department of Justice 
ARRA - Edward Byrne Justice .Assi Gram 

ARK.A - Edward Bvrne Justice A.sst Grant 

66.458 

66.458 

I6.S03 

16.804 

W'04-2-001 

W05-2-001 

B-82-8-064 

20095B-B9-294 

997.510 

940.317 
1.9-37.827 

78.304 

46.228 

Bureau of Justice .Assistance 
Bullet Proof Vest Grant 16.607 None 5,261 

Edward Byrne Mem Justice Assistance Grant 
Mulii-Jurisdiciional Task Force 

Safesireets Violent Crime Iniiiaiive 

Project Sale Neighborhoods 

16.7.38 

16.7-38 

16.609 

B10-2-009 

166E-NO-64194 __ 

F09-8-006 

127.113 

17.628 
144.741 

7.334 

Department of Transportation 
Federal Transit Administraiion 

Section 5311 - Operating .Assistance - Computers 
Section 5311 - Operaiing .Assistance - Geoeraiors 
Section 5311 - Operaiing .A.ssisiance - Vans 

Federal Highway .Administraiion 
.ARRA - Highway Planning and Construciion 

20.509 
20.509 
20.509 

20.205 

LA-86-X001 
LA-86-X001 
LA-86-X001 

742-37-0020 * 

6.600 
46.-331 

146,748 
199.679 

1,888.868 

Highway Safety Commission 
PD Year Lona Overtime 20.600 PT2010510000 135.726 



CITY OF WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

Federal Granis/PiLss "Through 

Ciran tor/Program'Tiile 
Corporation for National and 

Community Service 

.AmeriCorps 

.ArneriCorps 

Office of Educational Research & Improvement 

Department of Education 

Twenty-First Century Community 

Riverhend Elcmeruarv 

CFDA 
Number 

94.006 

94.006 

.Agency or Pass •• 

Through Number 

06AFH1..A0010020 

06AFHLA001 

E.\penditiires 

84.28: 28083CP4-3I 

27,035 

173,410 

200,445 

54.787 

E.xecutive Office of the President 

HIDT.A Overtime Rcimburscmem 95.001 GIOGCOOOIA 34.989 

6.579.615 

'̂ l.Jonoics Mujtii T'cderal .'Xŝ jisiance Prognun. 

See accompanying Notes Ui Schedule of Expci^diuirestif Federal ,'\wards. 



CITY OF WES'T MONROE. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXf^ENDlTU'RES 

OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 

1. Gcnoral 

The Schedule of Expendilures of Federal Awards presents the acliviiy of all federal award programs 
of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana. The City of West Monroe. Louisiana reporting entity is 
defined in Note 1 to the Ciiy's primary goverrmicnt financial staiements. Ail federal award programs 
received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government 
agencies, is included on (he .schedule 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal .Awards is presented using ihe accrual basis of accounting, 
which is described in Nolo 1 to the Ciiy's primary governmeni financial statements. The information 
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requiremenls of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 'Therefore, sotne amounis presented in 
this schedule may differ from amounis presented in. or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
staiements. 



CITY OF W'EST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR'AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR 'THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal .Awards 

There were no findings relating to ihis category. 

Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

I 0-1 Delinquent Utiliiy Custtjmer .Accotmts 

Condition: 

.Although during the audit we noted significant improvement iti cutting off delinquent 
accounts from prior year, during ovir lestwork of delinquent utility customers, we noted that 
in many instances customers were allowed to remain on the water and sewer system longer 
that the established minimum for cutoff for non-payment. In some cases, the customers leave 
the City owing the paymeni and the Cily never collects it which causes ihe penalties to grow 
e.xponentially. 

Recommendation: 

The City should enforce more rigidly its water and sewer cutoff prt>cedures for customers that 
don't make timely payments or any paymenis at all. 

Current Status: 

The City instituted a zero tolerance policy on all delinquent accounts. 

10-2 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable 

Condition: 

As noted in prior year, during the audil of the utility fund, the accounts receivable had 
numerous accounts that were old and no longer collectible becau.se the customer had moved 
and not notified the City. This resulted in substantial penalties accruing on these accounts 
causing an ovcrslaternenl of accounts receivable 

Recommendation: 

The City should determine which accounts are noi Ci.illeciible and write them off the 
subsidiary ledger and adjust the receivable accordingly. 

Current Status: 

'The City has wriiten off all old and uncollectible amounts and has adjusted the general ledger 
accordingly. 

10-3 Missirig Daily Bank Deposit 

Condition: 

The City determined a money deposit containing $32,945 was missing, The offices located 
inside city hall were under reconstruction and were in total disarray. There were also 
numerous contractors, laborers and inmates walking in and out of the offices. The employee 
that prepared the do[)osit and the employee that takes the actual deposit to the bank were both 
interviewed by police detectives. The bank showed no record of the deposit ever being made 
Duo to no video security of city hall and no other leads, the case was determined inactive by 
the detectives. 
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CITY 0\- WEST MONROE. LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011 (continued) 

10-3 Missing Dailv Bank Deposit (coniinued) 

Recommendation: 

The City should more closely monitor the safekeeping of the deposits and keep them in a 
location where il would not be easy for non approved persons lo access them. 

Current Status: 

We have instituted additional controls in order to not have this type of aciivity happen in Ihe 
future. 

10-4 Grant Administrator 

Condition: 

Currently, the City of West Monroe receives numerous federal and state grants and other 
funding. At the present time several departments and individuals oversee their particular 
grams. When the funds are electronically transferred to the Cily. some are difficult to 
deiermine which grant they belong to and are being recorded in the general ledger in the 
wrong account 

Recommendation: 

The City's management should consider creating a position of grant administrator to oversee 
all federal and state grants the City receives. .Also, each department should bo required to 
notify the grant administrator if a now grant is af.>plied for or received. 

Current Status: 

The City feels that it is not cost beneficial to hire another employee or give this responsibility 
to an existing employee because of ihe svork involved. 
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INDEPENDENT .ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Board of .Aldermen 

City of VV ŝt Monroe, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Government Audit Guide and enumerated below 
which were agreed to by the Mayor Sc .Aldermen of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana and the Legislative 
.Auditor. Siate f)f Louisiana, solely to assist the users in evaluating the Mayor & .Aldermen's as.sertions about City 
of West Monroe, Louisiana's compliance with certain laws and regulations during the year ended June 30, 2011 
included in the accompanying Louisiana Aiiestaiion Quesiiomiairv. The Mayor <t Aldermen of the City of West 
Monroe, Louisiana are responsible for its financial records and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public .Accountants and applicable .standards of Govermnent Auditing 
Srandanls. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. 
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for 
the pur[)ose for which this report has been requested or for any {)ihcr purpose. 

Financial Management 

1. Determine if management (Mayor and .Aldermen) were presented with timely and accurate monthly financial 
statements, incltiding budgct-to-actual comparisons on funds of the entity, during the year under 
examination. 

Management was presented with timely and accurate monthly financial staiements. including l.)udgei-(o-
actual comparisons on funds of the entity, during the year under examination. 

2. If management wiis deficit spending during the period under e.vaminalion. determine If there is a 
formalAvritten plan to eliminate the deficit spending and whether managemenl is monitoring ihe plan. 

There was no deficit spending during the period utidor examination. 

3. Delermitic if there are wriiicn j>o!icies and procedures for the following financial/business functions of the 
entity: 

a. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

'There are written policies and procedures for budgeting, including preparing, atlopiing, moniioring. and 
amending the budget. 
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b. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list: (3) 
the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) checks and 
balances to ensure con\plianoe with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required \o bo maintained 
for all bids and price quotes. 

'There are written policies and procedures for purchasing, including (1) how purcha.ses are initiated; (2) 
how vendors are added lo the vendor list: (3) ihc preparation and ap[)rovaI process of purchase 
requisitions and purchase orders; (4) checks and balances to ensure compliance with the public bid law; 
and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c. Disbursements, including [)rocessing. reviewing, and approving. 

There are written policies and procedures for disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and 
approving. 

d. Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. 

There are written ix>Iieies and procedures for rcceipis. including receiving, recording, and preparing 
deposits. 

Cfvdit Canls 

1. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards for the period umlcr e.xamination. including the 
card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. 

We obtained from managemenl a listing of all active credit cards for the period under examination, including 
the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. 

2. Obtain and review the entiiy's written policies and procedures t'or credit cards and determine if the following 
is addressed: 

• How cards are to be controlled 
• .Allowable business uses 
• Documcntati(Mi requirements 
• Required a[)provers 
• Monitoring card u.s.ige 

We obtained the City of West Monroe. Louisiana's written policy and procedures for credit cards and 
deiermined that it docs addresses how cards are to be c(jntrolled. allowable business uses, documentation 
requirements, required approvers, and monit<King card usage. 

3. Obtain the monthly statements for all credit cards u-sed during the period under e.xamination and .select for 
detailed review, the two largest (dollar amount) statements for each card. 

Wc obtained the monthly siaienfiems for all credit cards used during the period under examination and 
selected for detailed review, the two largest (dollar amount) statements for each card. 
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.A. Obiain the entiiy's supporting documentation for the [.lurchases/charges shown on the selected monthly 
statements: 

We obtained the entity's svipporting documentation for the purchases/charges shown on the selected 
monthly statements. 

• Determine if each purchase is supported by: 

c An original itemized receipt 

o Documentation of the business/public purposes 

!.:• Other documontati<in as may be required by policy 

We determined that each purchase was supported by: an original itemircd receipt with II exceptions 
totaling !i>512.15. the documeniaiion of the biisiness/public purposes with 1 exception totaling $69.00. 
and other documentation as may be rotjuired by policv. 

• Dcterinine if each purchase is: 

o In accordance with thresholds or guidelines esiablishe<l in the policies and prticedures 

•J For an appropriate and necessary business purpose relative to the entity 

We determined that each purchase was: in accordance with thresholds or guidelines established in the 
policies and procedures, and was for an appropriate and necessary busine.ss purpo.se relative lo the entity. 

• Determine if any purchases were made for personal purposes. If there are [)urchases made for 
personal purposes, deiermine ihe daie(s) of reimbursement 

We determined there was 1 purchase made for personal [>urposes lotaling $1,743.62, and was reimbursed 
Augu.sT3l. 2010. 

• Determine if any purchases effectively circumvented the entity's normal 
procurement/purchasing process and.-nr ihe Louisiana Publie Bid T.aw 

We determined ihat no purchases effectively circumvented the entity's normal proeurement/purchasing 
process and/or the Louisiana Public F3id Law. 

B. Determine if there was any duplication of expenses by comparing all travel and related purchases to the 
appropriate person's expense reimbursement repori(s). 

We determined that there was no duplication of expenses by comparing all travel and relaied purchases 
to Ihe appropriate person's oxpcn.se reimbursement rep<jrt(s). 

http://purpo.se
http://oxpcn.se
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C. Determine if each monthly credit card siatemeni (including supporting documeniaiion) was reviewed 
and approved, in wriiing. by someone oiher than the person making the purchases. 

We determined ihai each monthly credit card siatemeni (including supporting documentation) was 
reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person making iho purcha.ses. 

D. Determine If finance charges and/or late fees were asseS-sed on the monthly staiements. 

We deterniinod that no finance charges and.̂ or late fees were assessed on the monthly statemenis. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

L Obtain and review the entity's written policies and poicedures for travel and expense reimbursement and 
determine if the following is addressed: 

a. .Allowable expenses 
b. Dollar thresholds by category of expense 
e Documentation requirements 
d. Required approvers 

We obtained and reviewed the entiiy's wriiicn policies and prc»cedures for travel and expense reimhursoment 
and determined that it addresses all of the previously listed criteria explicitly. 

2. Obtain a listing of all travel and related expense reimbursemenis during the period under examination and 
select for review, the one person who was reimbursed the most money: 

We obiyinod a listing of all travel and related expense reimbursements during the period under examinaiion 
and selected for review, the one person who was reimbursed the most money. 

A. Obtain all of the expense reimbursement reports of Iho selected person, including the supporting 
documentation, and select the three largest (dollar) expen.se reports to review in detail: 

We oblained all of the expense reinibursemenl reports of the selected person, including the supporting 
documeniaiion. and selected the three largesi (dollar) expense reports (o review in detail. 

• Determine \f each e\pcnd'nuro is: 

o Reimbursed in accordance with written policy 

G In accordance with thresholds or guidelines established in the policies and procedures 

c For an appropriate and necessary business purpose relative to the travel 

We detormineJ that each expenditure is: reimbursed in accordance with written policy, in accordance 
with thresholds or guidelines established in the policies and procedures, and for an appropriate and 
nece-ssary business purpose relative to the travel. 
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• LV'termine if each expenditure is supported by: 

o .An original ilemi/.ed receipt 

o Documentation of the business.'public purpose 

;• Other documentation as may be required by policy 

We deiermined that each expenditure is supported by: an original itemized receipt, documentation of the 
business/public purpose, and other documentation as may be required by policy. 

• Determine if any of the expenditures were for personal purposes 

We determined that none of the expenditures were for personal purposes. 

• r.)etermine if each expense report (including documentation) was reviewed and approved, in 
writing, by someone other than the person receiving roimbursomenl 

We dciemiined thai ench expense report (including documentation) was reviewed and approved, in 
writing, by someone inhor than the perst>n receiving reimbursement. 

B. Deiermine if there was any duplication of expenses by comparing the expense reports to 
charges/purchases made on credit card(s). 

We determined that there was no duplication of expenses by comparing the expense reports to 
charges/purchases made on credit card(s). 

Contracts 

1. Obtain and review the entity's written policies and procedures for contracts/contracting, including leasing, 
and determine if the foll(>wing is add.fcsscd: 

• Types of services requiring written contraet.s 
• Standard terms and definitions 
• Legal review 
• .Approval process 
• Moniioring prt.icoss 

We oblained and reviewed the entity's written policies and proceilures for contract.s/contracting. including 
leasing, and determined that the following is addressed: types of services requiring wriiten contracts, 
standard terms and definitions, legal review, approval process, and monitoring process. 

2. Determine if the entity has centralized control and oversight of contracts to ensure that services/deliverables 
received and payments made comply with the terms and conditions of the contracts 

We deiermined that the entity has centralized control and oversight of contracts and ensured that 
services/deliverables received and payments ntade comply with the terms and conditions of the contracts. 
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3. Obtain and review the accounting records for the period under examination to identify indiv idual.s,'businesses 
being paid for coriiracted services. Select the five "vendors" that were paid the most money during the 
period and for each 

• Determine if there is a formal.'wriitcn contract that supports the services arrangement and the 
total amount paid 

• Determine the business legitimacy of ihe vendor if not known by the auditor 

\\'\2 obtained and reviewed accounting records tor the period under examinaiion to identify 
individuals/businesses being paid tor contracted services. We selected the five "vendors" that were paid the 
most money during the period and for each, determined that there is a formal.^whtten contract that supports 
the services arrangement and the total amount paid, and determined the business legitimacy of the vendor. 

4. Obiain a listing of all active contracts and the expenditures made during the period under examinaiion. 
Select for detailed review, the largest (dollar amount) contraci in each of the following categories that was 
entered into during the period 

1. Services 

2. Materials and ."supplies 

3. Public Works 

We oblained a listing of all active contracts and the expenditures made during the period under examination. 
We selected for detailed review, the largest (dollar amount) contract in each of the previously listed 
categories that was entered into during the period 

A. Obtain the selected contracts and the related paid invoices and: 

• Determine if ihe contract is a related party transaction 

We determined none of the selected coniracls were related |.iart\ iran-sactions 

• Determine if the transaction is subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law: 

c If yes, determine if the entity complied with all rcijuirements 

c If no. determine if the entity provided afi open and competitive atmosphere tor ihe 
transact ion.''work 

We deiermined the transactions subject to Louisiana Public Bid Law complied with all requirements 
without exception. 

84 



To the Honorable Mayor and 
Board of .Aldermen 

City of West Monroe. LouisiLina 
PviHC 1 

Deiermine if the contract was awartied un^ler die request for pmposals method. If done so, 
obtain all proposals and the evaluation/scoring documents to determine if the contract was 
awarded to the most responsible otTeror whose proposal was the most advantageous taking into 

sideraiion price and other evaluation factors set forth in the request for proposals. cons 

We determined none of the selected contracts were awarded under the reijuesl for pnjposals 
mcihod. 

Determine if the procurement was made "off" state contract (as oppo.^od to following rhe 
conifietitive bidding requirements of the Louisiana Public Bid Law). If done so, determine if the 
board formally ado[)ted rhe u-se of the Louisiana Procurement Code (R.S. 39:1551-1755), the set 
of laws that govern most state agencies' purchases of certain .services, materials and supplies, 
and major repairs. 

We determined none of the selected procurements was made "off" state contract. 

Determine if the procurement related to homeland security and was made from federal General 
Services .Administration (GS.A) supply schedules. If done so. determine if the entity (1) utilized 
a Louisiana licensed distributor: (2) used the competitive ordering procedures of the federal 
GS.A: and (3) received prior approval î roni the director of the Stale Office of Homeland Security 
and Emergency Preparedness, or his designee 

We determined none of the selected procurements was related to homeland securiiy and made 
from federal General Services Administration (GS.A) supply schedules. 

I.)eiermine if the entity "piggybacked'' onto another agency's contraci. If done so, determine 
there is documentatitui on file that clearly demonstrates the contract was previously bid, viable 
contract and the price paid by the entity was the same as that contract's bid price 

We determined the entity did not "piggyback" onto another agency's contract. 

Deiermine if the contraci was amended. If done so. deiermine whether the original contract 
contemplated or provided for such an amendment. Furthermore, deiermine if the amendment is 
(.Hitsidc the .scope of the original contract, and if so. whether it should have been separately bid 
and contracted. 

We determined thai none of ihe selected contracts were amended. 

Deiermine if the invoices received and payments made during the period complied with the 
terms and conditions of the coniracl. 

We deiermined that invoices received and payments made during the period complied with the 
terms and conditions of the selected contracts. 
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• Determine if there is written evidence ihat the entity's legal advi-<.or reviewed the contract and 
advised entering into the contraci. 

W'e determined there is written evidence that the entity's legal advisor reviewed the -selected 
contracts and ad\ ised entering into the selected contracts. 

• Determine if there is documentation of board approval, if required 

W'e determined there is docun^entation of board approval of solecied contracts. 

Payroll and Personnel 

L Obtain and review the entity's written f)olicies and procedures for payroll and personnel and determine if 
they address the [irocessing oi payroll, including reviewing and approving lime and atrendance records, 
including leave and overtime worked. 

We obtained and reviewed the entity's written policies and procedures for payroll and personnel and 
determined that they address the processing of payroll, including reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, inchiding leave and overtime worked. 

2. Obtain a listing of employmeni coniracts/agreoments in force during the period under examination. Select 
the largest (dollar amount) employment contract and deiermine if all payments issued during the period 
under examination were done in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract. 

We obtained a listing of employment eonlract.s/agreemonis in force during ihe period under examinaiion. 
We .selected the largest (dollar amount) employment contract a;)d determined that all paymenis i-ssued during 
the period under examinaiion were done in strict accordance with the lornis and conditions of the contract. 

3. Select the attendance and leave records for one pay period and; 

• Determine if all employees are documenting their dailv attendance and leavitig (e.g.. vacation, 
sick. etc.). 

• Determine if supervisors are approving, in writings die aliondance and leave of all employees. 

• Determine if the entity is maintaining accurate written leave records (e.g.. hours earned. ht)urs 
used, and balance available) on all eligible employees. 

Wc .<;ctected the attendance and leave records for tme pay period and determined thai all employees are 
documenting their daily attendance and leaving (e.g., vacation, sick. etc.). determined that supervisi)rs are 
approving, in writing, the attendance and leave of all employees, and determined that the entity is 
maintaining accurate written leave records (e.g., hours earned, hours used, and balance available) on all 
eligible employees. 
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4. Select the five highest paid employees and determine if changes made to their hourly pay rates/salaries 
during the period under examinaiion were approved in writing and in accordance w ith policy. 

We selected the five highest paid employees and deiermined that changes made to iheir hourly pay 
rates/salaries during the period under examinaticm were approved in writing and in accordance with policy. 

5. Select the five largest icrmination payments (e.g.. vacation, sick, compensatory time, etc.) made during ihe 
period under examinaiion. Determine if the payments were supported by documentation, made in strict 
accordance with policy and/or contract, and properly approved. 

We selected the five largest torminaiion payments (e.g.. vacation, sick, compensatory time, etc.) made during 
the period under examinaiion. We determined that the payments were supported by documentation, made in 
strict accordance with policy and/or coniract. and properly approved. 

6. Determine if any employees were also being paid as contract labor during the period of examination. 

We determined there were no employees who were also being paid as coniract labor during the period under 
examination. 

Wc were not engaged to, and did not. perform an examinaiion. the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion on management's asseriioi\s. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other niatteis might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

'This report is intended solely for the use of management of the City of West Monroe, Louisiana and fhe 
Legislative .Auditor, State of Louisiana and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures 
and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513. this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

^̂ t̂.H *̂̂ r>1_ i-lĉ Ĵki,-1 M v i ^ C A M d ^ 

November 16, 2011 
West Monroe. Louisiana 
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Corrective .Action Plan 

Credit Cards 3.A.: 

Condition: 

It was determined that 11 items were not supported by an original itemized receipt totaling $512.15 and 1 liem 
had no documentation oi the business/public purpo.se that totaled S69. 

Corrective Action Plan: 
The City will continue to improve in this area hy monitoring more closely all items that support all credit card 
transactions. 

Credit Canls 3.A.: 

Condition: 
li was deiermined thai there was 1 purcha.sc made lor personal purposes that totaled $1,743.62 w ĥich was 
reimbursed (.m Augu.si 31, 2010. 

Corrective Action Plan: 
-As with the previous condition, the Ciiy will continue to improve in this area by monitoring more closely all 
items that support all credit card iransaciions. The employee reimbur-sed the amount owed to the City 
immediately upon notification. 
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